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CORPORATE INFORMATIO@

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank
Agriculture Bank of China

AUDITOR

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER TO THE COMPANY

As to Hong Kong Law

DLA Piper Hong Kong
17/F., Edinburgh Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Head Office

Tower Il, No. 32 Lingyin Road
Xihu District, Hangzhou 310007
Zhejiang Province

People’s Republic of China

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong
Room 706, 7/F., Albion Plaza

2-6 Granville Road

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong
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SHARE INFORMATION

: Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code : 90

Board Lot : 2000 shares

Financial Year End : 31 December

Place of listing

At 31 December 2018
Number of shares in issue
Market Capitalisation
Closing price

: 458,600,000 shares
: HK$293.50 million
: HK$0.64 per share

SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

SHAREHOLDERS’ CALENDAR

For attending and voting at the Annual General
Meeting

Latest time to lodge transfer
documents for registration
with Share Registrar

Closure of Register of Members

At 4:30 pm
on 3 June 2019

4 t0 10 June 2019
(both dates inclusive)

Record date 10 June 2019
Annual General Meeting 10 June 2019
Ex-dividend date for final dividend 12 June 2019

For entitling 2018 final dividend

At 4:30 pm
on 13 June 2019

Latest time to lodge transfer
documents for registration
with Share Registrar

Closure of Register of Members

Record date

14 June 2019
14 June 2019

On or around
26 June 2019

Payment Date of Final Dividend

2019 Interim Results Announcement  August 2019 (tentative)
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

iPR Ogilvy Ltd.
23/F., The Center
99 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Telephone : (852) 2136 6185
Facsimile . (852) 3170 6606
E-mail : amber@iprogilvy.com

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.amberenergy.com.hk
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INANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue W
Profit from operations 48 &5 7
Profit attributable to equity AREERRR

shareholders of the Company FE 18 % A1
Basic earnings per share FREARRBF
Dividend per share FREE

— Interim — i

— Proposed final — ¥R K 5
Total assets BEE
Shareholders’ equity BRRES
Net asset value per share! BREEFE
Net debt? (EU=EE
Total capital® B
Gearing ratio* BEE AL &
Notes:
1. Shareholders’ equity

Number of ordinary shares in issue

2. Total debts (including all interest-bearing borrowings and

shareholder’s loan) — Cash and cash equivalents

3. Shareholders’ equity + Net debt

4. Net debt
Total Capital

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IEIABEIRAR A A

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HILEEE

—E-\&E
RMB’000
ARETR

281,625
93,733

45,580
RMB0.099

AR ¥0.09975C

HK$0.035
0.035#& T

—E-)\E
RMB’000
AREFR

1,234,156
542,487
RMB1.18
AR #1.18T
518,572
1,061,059
48.87%

2018 2017
—T—+tF
RMB’000 Change
ARET R 29
348,364 -19.2%
90,562 3.5%
34,222 33.2%
RMBO0.075 32.0%
AR¥0.0757C
Nil Nil £ 0%
HK$0.03 16.7%
0.03% T
At 31 December
R+=ZA=+-—H
2018 2017
—E—+F
RMB’000 Change
ARBTR 29
1,288,869 -3.9%
521,339 41%
RMB1.14 3.5%
AR 14T
604,144 -14.2%
1,125,483 -5.7%
53.68% -4.8%
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENTS

Dear Shareholders,

In 2018, the Group adheres to the commitment of
“Safe production, Prudent management”.

In 2018, the Group made good use of the unique
advantage of gas-fired power plants and extended
the existing power generation business to the heating
business through distributed power generation. During
the year, the Group proactively explored heat users
and achieved an explosive growth of 231.70% for the
revenue of relevant business. Meanwhile, the Group
completed the rooftop photovoltaic construction
projects on two of its power plants during the year
to provide the relevant plants and power grids with
new and quality clean energy. While saving the cost
in procuring external electricity for the relevant plants,
it also brought in revenue from sales of electricity
and relevant government grants. Driven by the
enhancement in production management efficiency
and saving in finance expenses by the Group during
the year, profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018
increased significantly by 33.19% to RMB45,580,000
as compared to the previous year. The result is
encouraging.

In 2019, with the deepening of market economy
reform, the electric system reform and energy
supply reform in the interests of the Group is being
accelerated. The Group will keep abreast with the latest
development, proactively explore the application path
for auxiliary power service market and spot a niche in
the market based on its own conditions. In addition,
the Group will also endeavor to explore potential
investment and development opportunities in the
PRC market to enrich and strengthen operation and
assets portfolio of the Company, thereby enhancing
future profitability and scale of the Group, and
creating maximum returns for shareholders. Moreover,
the Group will push forward with the research,
development and investment in projects of gas-fired
power generation and make a survey of clean energy
projects other than natural gas for future development.
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According to the national strategy for clean energy, the
promotion of natural gas comes high on the agenda of
energy transformation. The Group has full confidence
in the development of the industry and the existing
power plants. Being optimistic about the prospects of
clean energy, the Group will attach importance to clean
energy, base the power generation of natural gas upon
its own conditions and branch out into other operations
of clean energy.

In the long run, the Group will combine the concept
of “Energy+Technology”, and proactively promote the
extension and upgrade of the industry chain to enrich
the Group’s existing business model.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my heartfelt gratitude to shareholders for their constant
support and to all directors, the management team and
all staff for their dedication, as well as all partners for
their tremendous support.

Facing the future, the Group will continue to do its

utmost with full confidence to achieve outstanding
results.

WEI Junyong
Chairman

Zhejiang Province, China, 29 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISS=4

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is mainly engaged in the development,
operation and management of natural gas-fired power
plants. The Group has four wholly-owned gas-fired
power plants in Zhejiang province and the aggregate
installed capacity was approximately 458MW. During
the year, the Group completed the rooftop photovoltaic
projects of Zhejiang Amber Jing-Xing Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“Jing-Xing Power Plant”)
and Amber (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal Power Co.,
Ltd. (“Anji Power Plant”) which were successfully
connected to the grid, contributing 578kW of installed
capacity and new sources of income to the Group.
Meanwhile, the Group’s Anji Power Plant was officially
put into operation of heat supply in August 2017 with
a maximum heating capacity of approximately 160
tons/hour, thus developing a promising landscape for
development.

With the overall economic restructuring and the
structural adjustment in electricity procurement
demand of Zhejiang Province in 2018, the relevant
government departments in Zhejiang Province
optimised and adjusted the annual generation
schedules of the Group’s four power plants to meet
the peak demand of the power grid during the year.
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s
overall power generation decreased by 69.62% to
88,505MWh as compared to 291,310MWh in the
previous year. Meanwhile, in view of the overall
decrease in electricity generation during the year, the
consumption of natural gas for electricity generation
decreased by 67.67% to 21,160,000m® from
65,442,000m? in the previous year. During the year,
the Group actively explored heat users and achieved
breakthroughs. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group sold 104,321 tons of steam, representing
a significant increase of 69,638 tons, or 200.78%, as
compared to 34,683 tons in the previous year.
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During the year, with the increase of natural gas price,
the Zhejiang Provincial Price Bureau and Zhejiang
Provincial Development and Reform Commission
accordingly adjusted the volume tariff of natural gas
power generating units in May 2018 and October
2018 respectively, totaling RMBO0.223/kWh (inclusive
of value-added tax (“VAT”)). Accordingly, the volume
tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Hangzhou Amber Blue Sky
Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“Blue Sky
Power Plant”), Zhejiang Amber De-Neng Natural
Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“De-Neng Power
Plant”) and Jing-Xing Power Plant under the Group
was increased from RMBO0.567/kWh in the previous
year to RMBO0.79/kWh, representing an increase of
approximately 39.33%; that of Anji Power Plant under
the Group increased to RMB0.73/kWh from RMB0.507/
kWh in the previous year, representing an increase
of approximately 43.98%. In addition, the Zhejiang
Provincial Price Bureau and Zhejiang Provincial
Development and Reform Commission adjusted the
price of natural gas for use in natural gas power
generating units, raising the total price of natural gas
for non-residential use (inclusive of VAT) by RMB1.06/
m?, from RMB2.21/m® to RMB3.27/m?, representing an
increase of approximately 47.96%. The capacity tariff
of the Group’s four power plants remained unchanged
during the year. Since the Zhejiang Provincial Price
Bureau adjusted the gas consumption price of the
Group’s natural gas power generating units by a margin
larger than that of the volume tariff of the natural gas
power generating units during the year, the Group’s
power generation cost increased, thus exerting
pressure on the Group’s gross profit. However, as
the Group generated less electricity during the vyear,
the above price adjustments did not have significant
adverse impact on the Group’s financial performance.
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In addition, the Ministry of Finance and the State
Taxation Administration issued a “Notice on Adjustment
of VAT Rate” (Cai Shui [2018] No. 32) during the year,
announcing the adjustment of VAT rate since 1 May
2018. As a result, the VAT rate on electricity sales and
output and the VAT rate on natural gas inputs related
to the Group’s main businesses were reduced by one
percentage point, from 17% to 16% and 11% to 10%,
respectively. There was no significant impact on the
Group’s financial performance as the rate of output VAT
and input VAT were reduced at substantially the same
pace.

Equity Installed Capacity

As at 31 December 2018, the equity installed capacity
of power plants owned and operated by the Group was
as follows:

o

B
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SN MR ERBRFERNTE (BRAE
BEHHEREL) (BH[2018]1325%) - B
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Equity
Installed Equity installed
Power plant Category capacity interest capacity
BE® BERED RHREE Bz HERHTFE
(MW) (%) (MW)
(JEER) (%) (JKE)
Blue Sky Power Plant Natural gas 112 100 112
g RAR
De-Neng Power Plant Natural gas 112 100 112
ZHLE M RAR
Jing-Xing Power Plant Natural gas 75 100 75
REEH RAR
Photovoltaic 0.22 100 0.22
KR
Anji Power Plant Natural gas 158 100 158
ZE B RAR
Photovoltaic 0.36 100 0.36
KR
Total 457.58 100 457.58
“at
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On-grid Tariff

On-grid tariff is determined by the Zhejiang Provincial
Price Bureau after taking into account the types of
fuel, cost structure and operating profit of similar
power plants within the provincial grid. According
to the “Notice Regarding the Trial Implementation of
Dual Tariff for Natural Gas Power Generating Units in
Zhejiang Province” issued by the Zhejiang Provincial
Price Bureau, a dual tariff policy for natural gas (the
“Dual Tariff Policy”) has been implemented in trial by
Zhejiang Province since 1 January 2015. Affected by
the relevant policy, the Group’s tariff revenue is mainly
divided into two parts, namely volume tariff revenue and
capacity tariff revenue.

During the year, the Zhejiang Provincial Price Bureau
announced in May 2018 that, starting from 1 May
2018, the volume tariff of natural gas power generating
units would be adjusted upward by RMB0.021/
kWh based on prices inclusive of VAT. As a result,
the volume tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Blue Sky Power
Plant, De-Neng Power Plant and Jing-Xing Power
Plant under the Group was increased to RMBO0.588/
kWh from RMBO0.567/kWh in the previous year,
representing an increase of approximately 3.70%; that
of Anji Power Plant under the Group was increased to
RMBO0.528/kWh from RMB0.507/kWh in the previous
year, representing an increase of approximately 4.14%.
In October of the same year, Zhejiang Provincial
Development and Reform Commission issued a notice
announcing an increase of RMBO0.202/kWh in the
volume tariff of natural gas power generating units
for the period from 1 October 2018 to 31 December
2018. Therefore, the volume tariff (inclusive of VAT) for
Blue Sky Power Plant, De-Neng Power Plant and Jing-
Xing Power Plant under the Group was increased from
RMBO0.588/kWh to RMBO0.79/kWh, representing an
increase of approximately 34.35%; that of Anji Power
Plant under the Group increased from RMBO0.528/kWh
to RMBO.73/kWh, representing an increase of about
38.26%. The capacity tariff (inclusive of VAT) of the
power plants under the Group remained unchanged
during the year; the capacity tariff (inclusive of VAT) of
Blue Sky Power Plant, De-Neng Power Plant and Jing-
Xing Power Plant was RMB470/kW/year, the capacity
tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Anji Power Plant under the
Group was RMB680/kW/year.
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In January 2019, Zhejiang Provincial Development
and Reform Commission issued a notice announcing
the decrease of the volume tariff (inclusive of VAT) for
natural gas power generating units for the period from
1 January 2019 to 31 March 2019 by RMB0.063/kWh
and the capacity tariff remaining unchanged. Therefore,
the volume tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Blue Sky Power
Plant, De-Neng Power Plant and Jing-Xing Power Plant
under the Group were reduced by approximately 7.97%
from RMBO0.79/kWh as mentioned above to RMBO0.727/
kWh; that of Anji Power Plant under the Group was
reduced by approximately 8.63% from RMBO.73/kWh
to RMBO0.667/kWh.

PRODUCTION VOLUME

Natural Gas Power Generation

In order to facilitate the trial implementation of the Dual
Tariff Policy by Zhejiang Province since 1 January 2015,
the relevant government authorities have organised the
2018 production plan for natural gas power generating
units based on the maximum demand within the power
grid. In response to the adjustment to overall electricity
procurement demand in Zhejiang Province in 2018
and in order to meet the maximum demand within
the power grid, the relevant government authorities
optimised and made adjustments to the annual
production plan of the four power plants under the
Group, which decreased the production tasks of the
Group for the year accordingly. For the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group’s production volume was
88,505MWh, representing a decrease of 69.62% as
compared to 291,310MWh in the previous year.
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During the year, the Group’s actual power generation RERN AEEBERZE/NEFHNOT:
hours are as follows:

2017 Variance

—E—+F -l dad

(hour) (%)

Power plant BEM (/NEE) (%)
Blue Sky Power Plant EXER 110 10.9
De-Neng Power Plant EEeER 302 -41.4
Jing-Xing Power Plant RELE R 286 -58.4
Anji Power Plant ZEER 1,416 -79.4
Equivalent to full load HERMEEE 637.5 -69.6

power generation

According to the 2019 Unified Production Plan for BENIAEREEAEE TENRER T

Natural Gas Power Generating Units issued to the four EN T - NFRARFFARABZETE K
power plants under the Group by the Energy Bureau SE_ZT-NEFENEEFE)RHEOT:

of Zhejiang Province, the Group’s planned generation
hours for 2019 are as follows:

2019 Plan 2018 Plan Variance
—z—nx EELINE
HE HE (L
(hour) (hour) (%)
Power plant BER (/NEF) (/NEs) (%)
Blue Sky Power Plant E NG 300 300 -
De-Neng Power Plant EEeER 300 300 =
Jing-Xing Power Plant (Nete) T S g () 1,000 1,600 -37.5
Anji Power Plant ZH B 600 1,000 -40.0
Equivalent to full load power HEE R mEHES 517.6 755.4 -31.5
generation
Note: As Jing-Xing Power Plant is a regional dispatchable power plant, the #F: REERAMAEE —T-AFREFEIREDY
planned generation hours for 2019 are subject to change and the EEREE ) BHKEAREAM S EERERKMA
actual generation hours may be adjusted according to the overall Zigh

local power demand.

.
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Photovoltaic Power Generation

Jing-Xing Power Plant and Anji Power Plant under the
Group completed their rooftop photovoltaic projects
and connected to the grid on 28 March 2018 and
13 June 2018, respectively, with respective installed
capacity of 217kW and 361kW. The electricity
generated was mainly used to supplement the auxiliary
power rate of the power plant, and the remainder
was sold to the power grid. For the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group generated approximately
420MWh of photovoltaic power (2017: nil), of which
approximately 75MWh was sold to the power grid and
contributed revenue of RMB106,000 to the Group.

Heat Sales Volume

Anji Power Plant under the Group formally put heating
into production in August 2017 with a maximum
heating capacity of approximately 160 tons/hour,
mainly providing steam for manufacturers in proximity
to its heating pipelines.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
sold 104,321 tons of steam, representing a significant
increase of 69,638 tons or 200.78% as compared
to 34,683 tons in the previous year. The significant
increase in heat sales was mainly due to the year-wide
heating supply in 2018 and the Group’s breakthrough
performance in actively attracting additional heat users
during the year. During the year, the average selling
price of steam (inclusive of VAT) was approximately
RMB271.18/ton, representing an increase of 8.47%
as compared to approximately RMB250/ton in the
previous year. During the year, the heating business
generated revenue of RMB25,899,000 for the Group,
representing an increase of 231.70% as compared to
RMB7,808,000 in the previous year, and contributed a
gross profit of RMB823,000 (2017: RMB283,000) and
government grant of RMB4,983,000 (2017: RMBhnil).
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B U 25 A R #106,0007T ©
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B & 2 5104,3210F - 8 _+ 4 [£34,683 7
Z 1% 1169,6380E 5(200.78% * & & A I8 & A1
FERAR-ZZE—N\FENEFEHEBUKLAK
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WA ARBE271.1870 B EFEFHEBEM
HNERBE250TT - EFH8.47% - NER - L %
BAEREEETIR K ARE25,899,0007T if
FEE ARKT?,808,0007T © #K231.70%
BRIERARS23,0007T (ZT—+4F: /\E
#283,0007T ) & B AT 47 B A IR #54,983,0007T
—T—tF: AREZ)
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Fuel Cost and Natural Gas Usage

The Group’s Blue Sky Power Plant, De-Neng Power
Plant and Jing-Xing Power Plant all use natural gas as
fuel for power generation, while Anji Power Plant uses
natural gas as fuel for power generation and heating.
Natural gas is the only source of fuel for the Group
and is provided by Zhejiang Province Natural Gas
Development Company, the sole supplier of the Group
and Zhejiang Province.

Natural gas prices in Zhejiang region are determined
by the Zhejiang Provincial Price Bureau. The Zhejiang
Provincial Price Bureau issued a notice in May 2018
announcing that, with effect from 1 May 2018, the price
of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) provided by Zhejiang
Province Natural Gas Development Company to the
Group was increased by approximately 4.52% from
RMB2.21/m?® in the previous year to RMB2.31/mé.
In October of the same year, Zhejiang Provincial
Development and Reform Commission issued a
notice announcing an increase of price (inclusive of
VAT) of approximately 41.56% from RMB2.31/m?
to RMB3.27/m® of natural gas provided by Zhejiang
Province Natural Gas Development Company to the
Group for the period from 1 October 2018 to 31
December 2018.
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During the year, the Group’s total consumption of
natural gas was 31,122,000m? (including 9,962,000m?
for heating), representing a decrease of 54.77% as
compared to 68,815,000m® (including 3,373,000m?
for heating) in the previous year. The Group’s
average unit fuel cost for power generation was
approximately RMB524.93/MWh (2017: approximately
RMB461.28/MWh), representing an increase of
13.80% as compared to that of the previous year. The
average unit fuel cost for heating was approximately
RMB219.93/ton (2017: approximately RMB195.63/ton),
representing an increase of 12.42% in the previous
year. Despite natural gas consumption for heating
increased during the year as a result of the increase
in heat sales, the total natural gas consumption
decreased during the year compared with that of the
previous year as electricity generation declined. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, fuel costs amounted
to RMB69,402,000, representing a decrease of 50.83%
as compared to RMB141,161,000 in the previous
year. Fuel costs accounted for 101.80% of the related
revenue (i.e., volume tariff revenue and revenue from
sales of heat) as compared to 103.47% in the previous
year, decreased by 1.67%, mainly due to, with the
support of a favorable clean energy policy, the Group’s
reduction in natural gas costs and production costs
through the enhancement of production management
efficiency in response to the peak adjustment required
by the power grid in Zhejiang province and the
optimisation of power generation mode and generation
schedule.

In January 2019, Zhejiang Provincial Development and
Reform Commission announced that, for the period
from 1 January 2019 to 31 March 2019, the price of
natural gas (inclusive of VAT) provided to the Group by
Zhejiang Province Natural Gas Development Company
was reduced from RMB3.27/m® to RMB2.97/ms,
representing a decrease of approximately 9.17%.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018
was RMB45,580,000, representing a significant
increase of RMB11,358,000, or 33.19%, as compared
to RMB34,222,000 of the previous year, mainly
attributable to the following factors: (i) production and
related management costs were lowered due to the
improvement in production and management efficiency;
(i) the Group proactively expanded heat users to
increase heat supply and the rooftop photovoltaic
power generation exceeded its expectation, thus
increasing the revenue from related sectors and the
government grants; (i) with the support of a favorable
clean energy policy, the pattern and plan of power
generation were optimised in accordance with the
peak adjustment required by power grid in Zhejiang
province, thereby reducing the cost of natural gas; and
(iv) reasonable arrangement for cash flows reduced the
occupation of capital, thus saving financial expenses.
For the year ended 31 December 2018, basic and
diluted earnings per share of the Company amounted
to RMBO0.099, representing an increase of 32.00% as
compared to RMBO0.075 in the previous year.

Revenue

With the trial implementation of the Dual Tariff Policy
by Zhejiang Province starting from 1 January 2015
and the commencement of operation of heat supply
of Anji Power Plant under the Group in August 2017,
the Group’s revenue mainly comprises volume tariff
revenue, capacity tariff revenue and revenue from sales
of heat.

Although the revenue from sales of heat showed signs
of robust growth, the volume tariff fell sharply due to
the reduction in production volume within the year. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue of the
Group amounted to RMB281,625,000, representing a
decrease of RMB66,739,000, or 19.16%, as compared
to RMB348,364,000 in the previous year.
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Operating Expenses

During the year, the Group’s operating expenses
mainly comprised fuel consumption, depreciation
and amortisation, staff costs and administrative
expenses. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group’s operating expenses were RMB187,892,000,
representing a decrease of RMB69,910,000, or
27.12%, from RMB257,802,000 in the previous year.
The decrease in operating expenses was primarily
due to the following factors: (i) production and related
management costs of the Group were lowered due
to the improvement in production and management
efficiency; and (i) with the support of a favorable
clean energy policy, the pattern and plan of power
generation were optimised in accordance with the peak
adjustment required by power grid in Zhejiang province,
thereby reducing the cost of natural gas.

Profit from Operations

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s
profit from operations was RMB93,733,000,
representing an increase of RMB3,171,000, or 3.50%,
from RMB90,562,000 in the previous year. The increase
in profit from operations was primarily due to the
following factors: (i) the Group expanded heat users
to increase heat supply and the rooftop photovoltaic
power generation exceeded its expectation, thus
increasing the revenue from related sectors; and (i) less
operating expenses incurred for the year.
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Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2018, net finance
costs of the Group were RMB29,396,000, representing
a decrease of RMB3,320,000, or 10.15%, from
RMB32,716,000 in the previous year. The decrease in
net finance costs was primarily due to the Group repaid
certain interest-bearing borrowings during the year
and reasonably arranged for cash flows to reduce the
occupation of capital, thus saving financial expenses.

Income Tax

According to the Law of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) on Corporate Income Tax, the tax rate
of all PRC subsidiaries under the Group was 25%. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, income tax of the
Group amounted to RMB24,736,000, representing
a decrease of RMB1,095,000, or 4.24%, from
RMB25,831,000 in the previous year. The decrease
in income tax was mainly due to the fact that an
additional provision for income tax of RMB1,140,000
was made in the previous year for the under provision
in respect of prior years.

Earnings per Share and Final Dividend

For the year ended 31 December 2018, profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Group
amounted to RMB45,580,000 (2017: RMB34,222,000).
The basic and diluted earnings per share amounted
to RMBO0.099, representing an increase of 32.00% as
compared to RMBO0.075 in the previous year.

At the Board meeting held on 29 March 2019, the
Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.035 per share (2017: HK$0.03) for the year
ended 31 December 2018. Based on the 458,600,000
(2017: 458,600,000) ordinary shares in issue as at 29
March 2019, the Board recommended the payment
of a final dividend amounting to HK$16,051,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB13,768,000)
(2017: HK$13,758,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB11,118,000)).
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Significant Investment Activities

During the year under review, the Group had no
significant investment activity.

Major Acquisitions and Disposals

During the year under review, the Group had no major
acquisition and disposal relating to its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2018, cash and cash equivalents of
the Group amounted to RMB74,860,000 (31 December
2017: RMB75,862,000).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had current
assets of RMB122,484,000 (831 December 2017:
RMB125,763,000), current liabilities of RMB313,658,000
(31 December 2017: RMB299,629,000) and net current
liabilities of RMB191,174,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB173,866,000) with a current ratio of 0.39 (31
December 2017: 0.42). The current ratio was declined
mainly because certain loans were transferred from non-
current liabilities to current liabilities with reference to the
repayment schedule during the year.

Sources of funds of the Group are mainly cash inflows
from operating activities and loans granted by banks
and related parties. The Group regularly monitors
its gearing ratio to control its capital structure. At
the same time, the Group also regularly monitors its
liquidity position, projected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, as well as
maintains long-term sound relationships with major
banks to ensure that it has sufficient liquidity to meet its
working capital requirements and future development
needs.
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Debts

All the debts of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollar and United States
Dollar. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had
total debts of RMB593,432,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB680,006,000), including related party loans
of US$19,700,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB135,205,000) (31 December 2017: US$19,700,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB128,724,000)) and
shareholder’s loan of HK$144,062,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB126,227,000) (31 December
2017: HK$137,315,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB114,782,000)).

Details of the Group’s debts as at 31 December of
2018 and 2017 are listed below:

ANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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REBOFEEBERAARE BTME
TitE-R_E—N\F+_A=+—8 &%
BHEELEE A ARES93,432,0000T (=&
—+tF+-_A=+—H: ARK#680,006,000
JT) * R B8 $519,700,0003% JT K B B 5 B 7Kk
(ALY ARK135,205,000T) (ZFE—+F
+=A=+—H:19,700,000% 7T (&AL A
K #128,724,0007T ) ) A1144,062,000/% JT &Y
IREREZR (FTEHARK126,227,0000T) (=
E—+HF+=-A=+—H:137,315,000% 7T
(HAEHARY114,782,0007T) ) °

REBR _ZE—NEER_F—+&+_HA
=t+—HWEKFBOT:

2018 2017
—E-N\%FE —E—tF
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

(PN (AKETT)

Unsecured loans from related parties EIRIRRA B X 270,205 293,724
Unsecured bank loans guaranteed Fh BB 7 2R Y

by a related party EEBIEITER 197,000 271,500

Shareholder’s loan f& R E K 126,227 114,782

Total #ast 593,432 680,006
The above debts are repayable as follows: P EBR AR

2018 2017

—B-N\%E —E—tF

(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

(ARETr) NS,

Within 1 year —FN 257,705 253,224
Over 1 year but less than 2 years BB —FEMRFEN 169,000 87,500
Over 2 years but less than 5 years FHAMFEAFA 166,727 339,282
Total st 593,432 680,006
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Among the above debts, approximately
RMB261,432,000 (31 December 2017: approximately
RMB243,506,000) were fixed-rated debts and
denominated in United States Dollar and Hong Kong
Dollar, and the remaining debts were denominated in
Renminbi and subject to adjustment in accordance
with relevant regulations of the People’s Bank of China,
bearing interests calculated at an interest rate of 3.92%
10 4.90% (2017: 3.92% to 4.90%) per annum.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total debt (including all interest-bearing borrowings
and shareholder’s loan, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company,
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position, plus net debts. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group’s gearing ratio was 48.87% (31 December
2017: 53.68%).

Capital Commitments

Details of the capital commitments of the Group as
at 31 December 2018 are set out in note 24(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2018, none of the property, plant
and equipment and land use rights was pledged as
collaterals for bank loans (2017: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no material
contingent liability (2017: Nil).
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Exchange rate risk

The Group primarily operates its business in Mainland
China and most of the transactions are settled in
Renminbi. Except for certain cash, bank balances
and borrowings that are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar and United States Dollar, the Group’s assets
and liabilities are mainly denominated in Renminbi.
The Group considers that its current foreign exchange
risk is insignificant and therefore has not hedged it
through any derivative for the time being. However, the
management of the Group will continue to monitor its
foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange risks should the need
arise.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total
of 265 employees, excluding 1 temporary staff (31
December 2017: 257, excluding 3 temporary staff). For
the year ended 31 December 2018, total employees’
remuneration (including directors’ remuneration and
benefits) was RMB29,414,000 (2017: RMB26,133,000).
The Group determines employees’ remuneration
according to industry practices, financial performance
and employees’ performance. In addition, the Group
provides employees with training and benefits, such as
insurance, medical benefits and mandatory provident
fund contributions, with an aim to retain talents of all
levels for further contribution to the Group.

Prospects for 2019

The Group will push forward with delicacy
management, step up the management of human
resources and deliver training sessions towards
the essential goal of efficient management in 2019.
Apart from the improvement in the pattern of power
generation, the Group will actively attract additional
heat users to create additional benefits and value for
the shareholders.
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Zhejiang Provincial Development and Reform
Commission issued the “Comprehensive Pilot Plan
for the Reform of Electric Power System in Zhejiang
Province” on 5 January, 2018, stipulating an electricity
market pattern applicable to Zhejiang Province for the
sake of fostering a diversified market oriented to the
needs of local market and establishing a provincial
electric power market system laying more stress on
electricity spot market than on the financial market
of electric power. With the deepening of market
economy reform, the electric system reform and energy
supply reform in the interests of the Group is being
accelerated. The Group will keep abreast with the latest
development, proactively explore the application path
for auxiliary power service market and spot a niche in
the market based on its own conditions.

According to the national strategy for clean energy, the
promotion of natural gas comes high on the agenda of
energy transformation. The Group has full confidence
in the development of the industry and the existing
power plants. Being optimistic about the prospects of
clean energy, the Group will attach importance to clean
energy, base the power generation of natural gas upon
its own conditions and branch out into other operations
of clean energy. Moreover, the Group will push forward
with the research, development and investment in
projects of gas-fired power generation and make a
survey of clean energy projects other than natural gas
for future development.

Exuding confidence, the Group will establish itself as
one of the best suppliers of clean energy in China.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WEI Junyong (“Mr. Wei”), aged 50, was
appointed as a non-executive Director in September
2015 and became the chairman of the Company in
June 2016. He was then appointed as an authorised
representative of the Company in March 2017 and
redesignated as an executive Director in June 2017.
Mr. Wei has also been the director of Amber Bluesky
(HK) Limited, Amber Deneng (HK) Limited, Amber
Jingxing (HK) Limited and Amber Anji (HK) Limited
since August 2017.

Mr. Wei graduated from Harbin Engineering University
in 1991 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering,
majoring in electronic engineering, and from China
Europe International Business School in 2008 with
a master’s degree in management, majoring in
business administration. Mr. Wei has over 20 years of
experience in corporate operations management and
has held various key management positions in Ping
An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. and
its subsidiaries. Since 2009, Mr. Wei had acted as a
director, a director and the president, an executive
committee member, the financial officer and the chief
financial officer of Minsheng Life Insurance Co., Ltd
(“Minsheng Life Insurance”). Mr. Wei is currently the
president of Shanghai Pu-Xing Energy Limited (“Puxing
Energy”).
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Mr. GU Genyong (“Mr. Gu”), aged 56, was appointed
as an executive Director in June 2017. Mr. Gu joined
the Group in December 2012 and was responsible
for work safety in electric power generation and the
construction management of the Group. He is currently
the general manager of the Company and the chairman
and director of Zhejiang Amber De-Neng Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd., Hangzhou Amber Blue Sky
Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd., Amber (Aniji)
Gas Turbine Thermal Power Co., Ltd., Zhejiang Amber
Jing-Xing Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd. and
Wenling Juneng Wind Power Generation Co., Ltd.

Mr. Gu has been in the power industry for over 30
years. Mr. Gu graduated from Nanjing Institute of
Technology in 1987, majoring in power plant thermal
energy, and from Southeast University in 1999 with
a master’s degree majoring in system engineering
(corporate management). Mr. Gu is a member of
Jiangsu Society of Engineering Thermophysics, and
was appointed as a member of the council of Zhejiang
Province Hangzhou Turbine Gas Turbine Machinery
Innovation Centre in January 2018. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Gu was the factory manager of Dilong
Thermal Power Plant of Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings)
Limited and an installation expert and engineer of
SINOPEC Jinling Petrochemical Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Jinquan (“Mr. Li”), aged 50, who acted as
a non-executive Director from March 2013 to June
2015, was appointed as a non-executive Director in
June 2016. Mr. Li graduated from Nanchang Institute
of Aeronautical Technology in 1992 with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering and from Beihang University in
2000 with a master’s degree in engineering. Mr. Li has
over 14 years of experience in corporate operations
management. From 1992 to 2004, Mr. Li acted as a
technician, deputy director of the manufacture and
development department and general manager of
the package material branch of AVIC Qingan Group
Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries and was responsible
for technology research and operation management.
He then worked in the investment management
department of Wanxiang Western Development Co.,
Ltd. from 2004 to 2009 as a senior project manager
and deputy general manager and was responsible
for investment management. From 2009 to 2014,
Mr. Li acted as the vice executive general manager
and executive general manager of the strategic
development department of China Wanxiang Holding
Co., Ltd. Mr. Li is currently a director and chairman of
Hanchuan NCN Machine Tool Co., Ltd.

Mr. ZHANG Lianghua (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 56, was
appointed as a non-executive Director in June 2017.
He is currently the vice president of Puxing Energy. Mr.
Zhang graduated from Wuhan University in 2003 with
a doctoral degree in policy and economics. Prior to
joining Puxing Energy, Mr. Zhang was a vice president
of Minsheng Life Insurance and a vice president of
Minsheng Tonghui Asset Management Co., Ltd. Mr.
Zhang also held various positions in the Life Insurance
Regulatory Department of China Insurance Regulatory
Commission, including deputy director and head of
Actuary Section.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TSE Chi Man (“Mr. Tse”), aged 65, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in May 2009. Mr. Tse holds a bachelor’'s degree
and a master’'s degree in business administration
from the University of Texas, Arlington. Mr. Tse has
over 20 years of experience in finance and business
development management. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Tse held various positions in a number
of organisations, including as a director of Chase
Manhattan Asia Limited, a mergers and acquisitions
director of Inchcape Pacific Limited, an executive
director of Lerado Group (Holding) Company Limited
and a managing director of Dresdner Kleinwort Benson
(China) Limited. Mr. Tse worked at Imagi International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, from 1999 to 2008
and was appointed as a director in 2004, and as the
chief financial officer in 2007 who was responsible for
overseeing the company’s accounting and finance,
administration and human resources functions. Mr. Tse
was also a member of the Design Institute Advisory
Board of Vocational Training Council.
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Mr. YAO Xianguo (“Mr. Yao”), aged 66, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in May 2009. Mr. Yao holds a master’s degree in
economics from Fudan University. He is currently a
professor at the School of Public Affairs, Zhejiang
University, a member of The Expect Evaluation
Committee of National Social Science Foundation
of China, an executive vice-chairman of the China
Industrial Economic Association and a member of the
Zhejiang Government Advisory Council. Mr. Yao is
also an independent non-executive director of Hithink
RoyalFlush Information Network Co., Ltd., a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. In May
2018, Mr. Yao was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of UniTTEC Co., Ltd., a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Yao was
an independent non-executive director of Zhejiang
Asia-Pacific Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from December
2013 to May 2017 and an independent non-executive
director of Wolong Electric Group Co., Ltd. and
Zhejiang Zheneng Electric Power Co., Ltd., companies
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, from January
2012 to January 2018 and September 2012 to January
2018, respectively.

Mr. YU Wayne W. (“Mr. Yu”), aged 56, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in August 2012. Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree, a Master of Arts (Economics)
degree and a Ph.D. (Finance) degree. Mr. Yu is
a Chartered Financial Analyst and is currently a
professor of City University of Hong Kong. Before
joining City University of Hong Kong, Mr. Yu was a
professor of Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
an assistant professor of the School of Business at
Queen’s University in Canada. Mr. Yu is currently an
independent non-executive director of Zhejiang Haers
Vacuum Containers Co., Ltd. and Richinfo Technology
Co., Ltd., companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management of the Group comprises the
executive Directors above, namely, Mr. Wei Junyong
and Mr. Gu Genyong, and the secretary of the
Company, namely, Mr. Lai Chi Fung. The biographical
details of the senior management are set out under
the heading “Executive Directors” above and in below
respectively:

Mr. LAl Chi Fung (“Mr. Lai”), aged 38, was
appointed as the company secretary and an authorised
representative of the Company in July 2017. Mr. Lai
holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree
with honours in Accounting. He is a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has
over 14 years of experience in auditing, accounting,
financial management and company secretarial
practice.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of Amber Energy Limited
(the “Company”) have the pleasure in submitting their
report together with the audited financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holdings and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the development, operation and management of
power plants fueled by natural gas in the PRC. Details
of the activities and other particulars of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the
year and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development are set out in the Chairman’s Statement
as well as the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 7 to 8 and pages 9 to 25 of this annual report.
An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages
9 to 25 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Company is one of the earliest enterprises entering
the natural gas power generation field in the PRC
and is aware of its responsibility for environmental
protection. The Group, which commits to sustainable
development of the environment and our society,
has continuously input resources and implement the
emission management policy of all kinds of pollutant
as well as other environmental protection management
standards to reduce the impact of its business
operation on the environment.

For further information about the environmental policies
and performance of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018, please refer to the environmental,
social and governance report to be issued on or before
26 July 2019.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As an entity incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
listed in Hong Kong, the Company is mainly governed
by the Companies Law (2016 revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571), the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
on the corporate level. The Board has adopted the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, and each of its
committee has its own term of reference defining their
respective rights, duties and obligation.

On operation level, the Group conducted its businesses
in accordance with, among others, the Electric Power
Law of the PRC and all other relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC in relation to the electric power
industry, energy conservation, environmental protection
and safety production. In addition, all business units
of the Group have acted in compliance with the local
labour laws and regulations.

During the year, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, there is no material breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the
Group which has a significant impact on its business
and operations.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its employees, customers,
suppliers, governments and business associates to
fulfil its long-term goals and development. To enhance
its competitiveness, the Group aims at delivering high
quality services to its customers constantly. During
the year, there was no material or significant dispute
between the Group and its stakeholders.
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For further information about the Company’s key
relationships with its employees, customers and
suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2018,
please refer to the environmental, social and
governance report to be issued on or before 26 July
2019.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business
operations of the Group may affect the Group’s
financial conditions or growth prospects. The Group
has been focusing on the control of risks and
uncertainties with the aim of understanding and
addressing the concerns of stakeholders. Key risks and
uncertainties faced by the Group are listed below:

Risk relating to price fluctuation and supplies
of natural gas

The business of the Group relies exclusively on natural
gas as fuel source which is currently provided by
the only supplier, Zhejiang Provincial Natural Gas
Development Company. If there is a shortage or
interruption in the supply of natural gas in Zhejiang
province, the business of the Group may be materially
and adversely affected. In addition, cost of natural gas
represented a significant proportion of the operating
expenses of the Group. As the gas prices applicable
to the Group are determined by the local provincial
price bureau in the PRC, increase in natural gas costs
will increase the operating cost of the Group and may
adversely affect its profitability. If in the future, the
government authorities decide to increase the prices of
natural gas, but not the on-grid tariffs, or the on-grid
tariffs are not adjusted accordingly on a timely manner,
or the rate of increase in on-grid tariffs is less than the
rate of increase in the prices of natural gas, the Group
will not be able to pass on the increased costs to its
customers, and may adversely affect its profitability.

The Group will actively conduct market analysis on the
price movement and, if practicable, expand channels
for procuring fuels, optimize structures of gas sources
and execute reasonable control on procurement cost.
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Risk relating to changes in policies in relation
to electricity retail market

With further reform of the national electricity system
in the PRC, Zhejiang province is already one of the
pilot sites for electricity system reform. The change of
electricity retail market policies created opportunities
for the Group to expand and diversify its customer
base. However, the operations of the Group may also
be affected by entering the electricity retail market,
such as increased complexity of the business mode,
market fluctuation of exchange tariffs and other
factors. The Group will actively follow policy guidance,
intensify the research of state policies, and take various
measures to assess the risks and benefits that may
affect the Group by changes in the electricity market.

Risk relating to change in PRC government
policies to electric power industry

The PRC government is currently implementing policies
that are favorable to the business of the Group and
providing various incentives to the Group which may
no longer be available or become less favorable in the
future. If the current favorable government policies and
incentives are reduced or are no longer available in the
future, the financial results of the Group in the future
may be adversely affected.
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Risk relating to current liabilities position of the
Group

The Group had net current liabilities position since the
financial year ended 31 December 2012, which was
principally due to utilization of short-term bank loans
and other borrowings for financing the Group’s capital
expenditure. The Group continuously seeks to convert
its short-term borrowings to long-term borrowings to
improve its net current liabilities position or settle the
short-term bank loans and other borrowings with long-
term loans. There can be no assurance that the Group
will always be able to raise the necessary finance by
borrowing from banks and other financial institutions
to finance its business, operations and capital
expenditure. In recent years, the intermediate parent
company of the Company, Puxing Energy, continuously
provide financial supports to the Group for its
operations. In the event that the existing banking and
credit facilities do not continue to extend with similar
or more favorable facilities to the Group and the Group
fails to obtain alternative banking and credit facilities
on reasonable terms or Puxing Energy discontinues its
financial support, the Group’s business and financial
position may be adversely affected. The Group may be
required to issue additional equity or debt securities
which could result in dilution to the equity interest of
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”),
and the incurrence of additional indebtedness would
result in increased fixed obligations and could result in
operating covenants that restricts its operation.
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Risk relating to financial instruments

The Group is exposed to certain market risks such as
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. Details of these
risks are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The risk factors as mentioned above are not exhaustive
or comprehensive, and there may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to thereto which are not known
to the Group or which may not be material at this
moment but could turn out to be material in the future.

RESULTS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December
2018 and the Group’s financial position as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
page 79 to 82 of this annual report.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

The board of Directors (the “Board”) recommends
the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.035 (2017:
HK$0.03) per share for the year ended 31 December
2018. The proposed final dividend, if approved by
the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, is expected to be paid on
or around 26 June 2019 to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members on Friday, 14
June 2019.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company will
be held on Monday, 10 June 2019 (the “AGM”). A
notice convening the AGM has been issued to the
Shareholders together with this annual report, which is
also available on the website of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at www.
hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at www.
amberenergy.com.hk.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
in the following periods during which day no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered:

()  from Tuesday, 4 June 2019 to Monday, 10 June
2019 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of
determining Shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible
to attend and to vote at the AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, 3 June 2019; and

(i) on Friday, 14 June 2019, for the purpose of
determining Shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend. In order to be qualified
for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 13 June 2019.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 192 of this annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company, nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s securities listed on the Stock
Exchange.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayments of the Group
during the year are set out in note 11 and 12 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

SHARES ISSUED

No share was issued during the year. Details of the
shares issued by the Company are set out in note 22(b)
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 22(a)
to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of change in equity on page 83
of this annual report, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had no
retained profits available for distribution. Pursuant to
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account of the Company can be applied
for payment of distributions or dividends to the
Shareholders provided that immediately following the
date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed
to be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
Accordingly, based on the future projection of the
Group’s profit and cash inflows from operations and
the anticipated ability of the Group to obtain continued
bank loans and financial support from its intermediate
parent company, the Directors determined that the
distributable reserves of the Company (including
share premium, contributed surplus and accumulated
losses of the Company) as at 31 December 2018 was
RMB216,535,000 (2017: RMB243,228,000).

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2018 are set out in note 17 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

There was no donation made by the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the shares of the Company.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

There was no equity-linked agreement entered into by
the Company during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company does not have any share option scheme
as at 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this
annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, 90.80% and
99.47% of the Group’s revenue were attributable to the
to the largest customer and the five largest customers
of the Group, respectively.

The Group had only one natural gas supplier during the
year. All purchase (not including purchases of capital
nature) for the year ended 31 December 2018 were
attributable to this supplier.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their
associates or any Shareholders, who to the knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company, had any interest in these major
customers and supplier.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. WEI Junyong (Chairman)
Mr. GU Genyong

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Jinquan
Mr. ZHANG Lianghua

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.
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The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules from each of the independent non-executive

Directors and considers them to be independent.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changes in the information of Directors required to
be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g)
of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules subsequent to
the publication of the 2018 interim report are set out

below:

()  Mr. Yao Xianguo ceased to be the independent
non-executive director of Wolong Electric Group
Co., Ltd. and Zhejiang Zheneng Electric Power
Co., Ltd., companies listed on the Shanghai Stock

Exchange, in January 2018;

(i) Mr. Wei Junyong ceased to be the director of
Minsheng Life Insurance Co., Ltd. in January

2019; and

(i) The remuneration of Mr. Gu Genyong was
adjusted to RMB42,000 per month with effect

from 1 January 2019.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 26 to

31 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Gu Genyong, Mr. Zhang
Lianghua and Mr. Tse Chi Man will retire by rotation at
the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a subsidiary
of its holding companies a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the year, the Group has carried out significant
transactions with its holding companies as detailed in
note 25(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
Save for as disclosed above, no other transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its holding
companies or a subsidiary of its holding companies
was a party or were parties and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of
the Directors was interested in any business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-
election at the AGM has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries that is not
determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration is subject to approval
by the remuneration committee of the Board with
reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and results of the Group. Details of the
Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

During the year, the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group comprises one Directors and
four individuals, which included the senior management
of the Company. Details of the highest paid individuals
are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section
467 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the
benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in
force throughout the financial year ended 31 December
2018. In addition, the Company has taken out and kept
in force appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2018, to the knowledge of the
Company, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company or any of their spouses or children
under 18 years old had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) (Cap. 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong)) which were required to be: (i) notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and
chief executive of the Company were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii) entered
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of
the Company, as at 31 December 2018, the following
persons (other than a Director or a chief executive of
the Company) had, or were taken or deemed to have
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which are required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO:
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Number of shares/ Percentage of

Capacity/ underlying shares issued share
Name of Shareholder Nature of interests held (rote ) capital
5 Fifsik iy 5 HEBETRE
% R 2 8 e B4 8B (M=) Bt
Amber International Investment Co., Beneficial interest 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
Ltd. (“Amber International”) Bk
RHERIRERR QA
([FRIEEE])
Shanghai Pu-Xing Energy Limited Interests in a controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
(“Puxing Energy”) (rete2 corporation
EERRERMDAT] REAEER
(TE2Bae]) e
China Wanxiang Holding Co., Ltd.  Interests in a controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
(“China Wanxiang”) (rote 2 corporation
PEBMERERAA RELE R
(ThE &R ) #e
Minsheng Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Interests in a controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
(“Minsheng Life Insurance”) (ot 2) corporation
REASRERH BRG] R A E s
(TREASRRE]) HE2
Mr. Lu Weiding (“Mr. Lu”) (rote2) Interests in a controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
BESEE ([BEE]) W corporation
R EE R
Ms. Li Li (oted Interest of spouse 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
B8 2 4 (M) Ao B =
BC Greater China Opportunities Beneficial interest 40,000,000 (L) 8.72%
Fund SPC, acting on behalf of Bk
and for account of BC New
Energy Fund SP (a segregated
Portfolio thereof)
WERPE#BEES (KEXER
BC New Energy Fund SP
(RERPE#BEES 2
BUEEMEE)ITE)
BC Asset Management Limited ™4 Interests in a controlled 40,000,000 (L) 8.72%

BC Asset Management Limited (%4 corporation
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Notes:

1 The letter “L” denotes the entity/person’s long position in the
shares.

(2) These shares are held by Amber International, which is owned as
to 100% by Puxing Energy, which is owned as to 57.14% by China
Wanxiang which in turn is, inter alia, 71.67% owned by Mr. Lu and
20% by E/BERZAR AT (Shanghai Guandingze Co., Ltd.), a
company owned as to 86.67% by Mr. Lu. The remaining 42.86%
of Puxing Energy is owned by Minsheng Life Insurance, which is
owned as to 37.32% by China Wanxiang. Therefore, Puxing Energy,
China Wanxiang, Minsheng Life Insurance and Mr. Lu are deemed to
be interested in the shares held by Amber International.

(3) Ms. Li Li is the spouse of Mr. Lu and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the said shares in which Mr. Lu is deemed to be
interested.

(4) These shares are held by BC Greater China Opportunities Fund
SPC, acting on behalf of and for account of BC New Energy Fund
SP (a segregated portfolio thereof) which is owned as to 100% by
BC Asset Management Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified by any other persons (other than Directors or
chief executives of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which are required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were entered in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO as at 31 December 2018.

TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LISTING RULES

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in
the normal course of business are provided under note
25(a) to the consolidated financial statements, and
none of which constitutes a discloseable connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction as
defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float as required under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 and up
to the date of this annual report.

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed
the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event of the Group after
the reporting period are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

KPMG retired and, being eligible, offered themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment of
KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at
the AGM. There has been no change in auditors of the
Company in any of the preceding three years.

By order of the Board

WEI Junyong
Chairman

29 March 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high
standards of corporate governance to maximize
operational efficiency, corporate values and shareholder
returns. The Company has adopted and applied the
principals of the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company will
continue to upgrade internal control system, strengthen
risk control management and reinforce the corporate
governance structure.

The Company has complied with the code provisions
and, where appropriate, the applicable recommended
best practices set out in the CG Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all
Directors regarding the compliance with the Model
Code. All Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control
of the Group, is entrusted with the responsibility to
supervise the overall management of the business,
including establishing and overseeing the Group’s
strategic development, business plans, financial
objectives, capital investment proposals, and assumes
the responsibilities of corporate governance of the
Group. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for implementing its business strategies
and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
business to the executive Directors and members of
senior management.
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Board composition EETHR
Executive Directors Non-executive Directors Independent
HITES FHITES non-executive Directors

BAFHITES

Ethnicity Chinese &
Bk

7 Directors 74 &5

;95 ggﬁup 50 - 55 56 - 60 61-66
< 2 Directors 24 &% 3 Directors 3% E 5 2 Directors 2% &£ %
Directorship with the Company 0-1 D=3 6-10
REABRNESHE
(Number of years) 2 Directors 22 #E S 2 Directors 22 # S 3 Directors 3R ES
(F8R)
Directorshi
F;g%%r%é%sﬂg§$ﬁﬁ§ 5 Directors 5% E % 2 Directors 2% &%
(Number of Companies)
(RRIZE)
Power industry Corporate operations @ -
experience and business é&)
BHITHELE development skills ROl
cxuspxvarse @ f O

Executive B d Financial management
@ management and oar_ experience
O leadership skills Expertise 2y A= @
M THEERAERRE and Skills
EEENEX
N5 K H Ae

Mainland market Economics, finance
expertise and engineering
BIAT5E AR expertise
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During the year and up to the date of this report, the
Board comprises:

Executive Directors

Mr. WEI Junyong (Chairman)
Mr. GU Genyong

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Jinquan
Mr. ZHANG Lianghua

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

The Board’s composition demonstrates a balance
of core competence with regard to the business of
the Group so as to provide effective leadership and
the requisite expertise to the Group. The executive
Directors and senior management of the Company
have extensive management experience in the
Company’s business.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on
page 26 to 31 of this annual report, which demonstrate
a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
qualifications.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.
The chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and the
chief executive of the Company (the “Chief Executive”)
are separately held by Mr. Wei Junyong and Mr. Gu
Genyong, the general manager of the Company,
respectively.

The Chairman provides leadership to, and oversee
the functioning of, the Board to ensure that it acts
in the best interests of the Group, and the Chief
Executive has the overall responsibility for carrying out
the strategy and direction set by the Board and for
managing the Group’s business.

Board Meetings

The Board meets approximately quarterly and on other
occasions when warranted by circumstances. During
the year, the Board held four meetings. Notice for
regular Board meetings are given to each Director at
least fourteen days prior to the meeting whereby the
Directors can put forward their proposed items into the
agenda. The agenda and the relevant Board papers
are then circulated to the Directors at least three
days before the Board meeting in order to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions.

In addition to regular Board meetings, under code
provision A.2.7 of the Listing Rules, the Chairman
should at least annually hold meetings with the non-
executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) without the executive Directors
present (the “Chairman and Non-executive Directors
Meeting”). During the year, a Chairman and Non-
executive Directors Meeting was held.
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Number of meetings and Director’s attendance

Details of the Directors’ attendance at the Company’s
general meeting and the meetings of the Board, the
audit committee, the remuneration committee, the
nomination committee and the Chairman and Non-
executive Directors meeting held during the year are

ERAXBREFEHERR

EEHEFARTOHRARRAGURES
T BERZBE FHZBEekRERZESS

a%% NREEREFNTEEER
T

set out below:

B FEIS B4

Chairman
and
Audit Remuneration Nomination Non-executive
General Board Committee Committee Committee Directors
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ESRR
EEg EREEE HFWEEE REZZBE ERITES
BREXE 2E E2E i ik 2E
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. WEI Junyong 1/1 4/4 N/A 1/1 1/1 1/1
BOERSE TER
Mr. Gu Genyong 11 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A
BRKEE TEA T iEH TEA TEA
Non-executive Directors
EHTES
Mr. LI Jinquan 0N 2/4 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
FEREE NER TER TEA
Mr. ZHANG Lianghua Al 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
RRERE TER TiER A
Independent non-executive Directors
BUERITES
Mr. TSE Chi Man 1/1 4/4 2/2 1/1 N/A 11
MEXTE Sl
Mr. YAO Xianguo 01 4/4 2/2 11 11 11
HhEBIE 4
Mr. Yu Wayne W. 1/1 4/4 2/2 N/A 1/1 1/1
MEESE TEm
Relationship amongst Directors EEZEBAR

There are no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships amongst Board
members and in particular, between the Chairman and
the Chief Executive.

EEEgNEBCH LEESRETHRAR ZMHE
BEEMPR B REAEMBEKR I

HI R R
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Non-executive Directors

The term of appointment of all non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) are
three years, subject to earlier termination in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association, Listing
Rules or applicable laws and regulations. Pursuant to
the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of
the Directors (including non-executive Directors) are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting at least once every three years.

Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

In determining the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, the Board follows the
guidelines as set out in the Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company has received annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tse Chi Man, Mr. Yao
Xianguo and Mr. Yu Wayne W. and concluded that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Continuous Professional Development of
Directors

Upon appointment to the Board, each new Director
receives a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
package to ensure that he understands the business
and operations of the Group and is sufficiently aware of
his responsibility and obligation under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.

The Directors are kept informed on the developments
of the statutory and regulatory regime, and the changes
in the business markets so as to facilitate them to fulfil
their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Continuing
briefings and professional development for Directors
will be arranged by the Company when considered
necessary.
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During the year, the Company has coordinated training
courses for the Directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. According
to the records provided by the Directors, the Directors
participated in the following continuous professional
development (“CPD”) during the year:

TRERRE

FAARFERE TR REBEERTE
REFRHEIRE - REEFREHEMCE
E=ERNFRA2EUATHEEERR ([KHEZR
EER]):

Type of CPD
HESERRER

Reading

materials

Attending relevant to

training the

courses Company or

and seminars its business

FEEAAT

£mmiEdERE SHEHEBFH

EifstE B & #

Mr. WEI Junyong BHEBEAE v/ v

Mr. GU Genyong BRI S 4 v 4

Mr. LI Jinquan TEREE v

Mr. ZHANG Lianghua RRELAE v/ v

Mr. TSE Chi Man AR E v v

Mr. YAO Xianguo ok 5 B % A v v

Mr. YU Wayne W. GRS v v
The Board established an audit committee (the “Audit BEEFeRN _TTNFNARIEZEZES ([

Committee”) and a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in June 2009, and a
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
in April 2012 (collectively, the “Board Committees”).
The term of reference of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee are posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. Members of the Board
Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
fulfil their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Audit Committee Remuneration Committee
EBZLEEE FTMEES

Audit Committee
The current members of the Audit Committee are:

Mr. TSE Chi Man (Chairman)
Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

All members of the Audit Committee are independent
non-executive Directors who possess sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise and
experience to fulfil their duties.

The Audit Committee serves as a focal point of
communication between the Directors, the external
auditors and the internal auditors with regards to their
duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal
controls, external and internal audits and assisting
the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing
independent review and supervision of financial
reporting, by satisfying itself as to the effectiveness
of the internal controls of the Group, and as to the
adequacy of the external and internal audits.
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During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were
held, inter alia, to review the 2017 annual results and
the 2018 interim results of the Group, the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems,
and the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions. In addition, the Audit Committee
also recommended to the Board the reappointment
of KPMG as the Company’s external auditor for the
year. The attendance records are set out under the
section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’
attendance” in this report.

EEAEE

FA - BRZEEHRITTMAEH AU (HF
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Remuneration Committee FMEESE
The current members of the Remuneration Committee FTMEESMRIEKE A

are:

Mr. YAO Xianguo (Chairman)

BEBRKE (EEEZR)

Mr. WEI Junyong mHEBEAE
Mr. TSE Chi Man MEXSLE

The Remuneration Committee is currently made up
of two independent non-executive Directors and the
Chairman, and is chaired by an independent non-
executive Director.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible
for reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board in relation to the remuneration packages and
benefits of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group to ensure the relevant individuals are fairly
rewarded in light of their contribution to the Company
with reference to their performance, and that they
receive suitable incentives to maintain high standards
of performance and to improve the Group’s and their
own performance. In connection with the review of the
remuneration package, no Director shall be involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

FHNEZE SR RHMABYIFATEERE
ERAEAK YH - BB LFENTEFRETME
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During the year, one Remuneration Committee
meeting was held, inter alias, to review the Company’s
remuneration policies, remuneration structure and
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management. The attendance records are set out
under the section headed “Number of meetings and
Directors’ attendance” in this report.

Remuneration paid to senior management

Remuneration paid to senior management of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 by
band are as follows:

FA-FHZEERITT —REF U (HF
BR)BEARBOFMEER  HFHREUAR
EERARREEABNFMNEGE - b F SR
RARE [@ZRBNEZTHFERR] —£-

XM FBREEABHHH
BE-F-N\FT-A=+—AILFELM
FARRBREEALHFHEEDT

Number of

staff

EIHAH

HK$0 - HK$1,000,000 Z 7T £1,000,0008 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t £1,500,0007% 7T 1

Nomination Committee

The current members of the Nomination Committee
are:

Mr. WEI Junyong (Chairman)
Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

The Nomination Committee is currently made up of
two independent non-executive Directors and the
Chairman, and is chaired by the Chairman.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible
for, amongst other things, (i) reviewing the Board’s
diversity policy and the measurable objectives set by
the Board for implementing the Board’s diversity policy
annually, and making recommendations to the Board
on any proposed changes to the Board according
to the Company’s corporate strategy; (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors; (iii) identifying individuals suitable
to be qualified as Board members; (iv) assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors
annually; and (v) deciding whether or not a Director is
able to and has adequately carried out his duties as a
Director.
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During the year, one Nomination Committee meeting

was held,

inter alias, to review the structure, size,

composition and diversity of the Board and to consider,
nominate and recommend the re-appointment of

Directors.

Nomination Policy

The Group adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) with effect from 1 January 2019,
and is disclosed as below:

1. Objective

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

The Nomination Committee assists the
Board in making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment of Directors, and
succession planning for Directors.

The Nomination Committee shall nominate
suitable candidates to the Board for it to
consider and make recommendations to
Shareholders for election as Directors at
general meetings or appoint as Directors to
fill casual vacancies.

The Nomination Policy provides the key
selection criteria and principles of the
Nomination Committee in making such
recommendations.

Selection Criteria

When making recommendations regarding
the appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board or re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall consider a
variety of factors including without limitation
the following in assessing the suitability of
the proposed candidate:

(@) Reputation for integrity;

(b) Commitment in respect of sufficient
time and relevant interests;
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(c) Diversity in all aspects, including but

not limited to gender, ethnicity, age,
cultural and educational background,
professional experience, industrial
experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service;

(d) The strength of the candidate and the
contributions that can be made to the
Board;

(e) Compliance with the criteria of
independence as prescribed under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the
appointment of independent non-
executive Director; and

()  Any other relevant factors as may
be determined by the Nomination
Committee or the Board from time to
time, as considered appropriate.

2.2 The appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board or re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board shall be
made in accordance with the Company’s
Article of Association, the laws of the
Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules and other
applicable rules and regulations.

Nomination Procedures

3.1

3.2

In the context of appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of such
individual and make recommendations for
the Board’s consideration and approval.

In the context of re-appointment of
any existing member(s) of the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation, for the
proposed candidates to stand for re-election
at a general meeting.
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3.3 For procedures for Shareholders’ nomination
of any proposed candidate for election
as a Director, please refer to “Procedures
for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director” set out in “Corporate
Governance” under the “Investor Relations”
section of the Company’s website.

3.4 The Board shall have the final decision on
all matters relating to its recommendation of
candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting.

4.  Approval and Review of the Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy has been approved by the
Board. The Nomination Committee will review this
policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness
of this policy. Any subsequent amendment of
the Nomination Policy shall be reviewed by the
Nomination Committee and approved by the
Board.

Board Diversity

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy
setting out the approach to the diversification of Board
members since 2013. The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members.
It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirement of the Company’s
business. All Board appointment will continue to
be made on a merit basis with due regards for the
benefits of diversity of the Board members. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision
will be made upon the merits and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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Nomination of Candidates

On 29 March 2019, the Nomination Committee, having
reviewed the Board’s composition, nominated Mr. Gu
Genyong, Mr. Zhang Lianghua and Mr. Tse Chi Man
to the Board for it to recommend to Shareholders for
re-election at the AGM. The nomination was made
after considering the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of
the retiring Directors, with due regard for the benefits
of diversity. The Nomination Committee had also taken
into account the respective contribution of the retiring
Directors to the Board and firm commitment to their
roles, and it was satisfied with the independence of Mr.
Tse Chi Man having regard to the criteria laid down in
the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has carried out its duties and responsibilities
as set out in D.3 of the CG Code including (i) the
development of policies and practices on corporate
governance; (i) monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company; (iii) reviewing and
monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the code of conduct applicable to the employees of
the Company and the Directors; and (iv) reviewing
compliance of the Company with the CG Code and the
disclosure in this report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in
preparing the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and that of the results and cash flows in
the relevant financial year. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting
policies, applied them consistently in accordance
with appropriate International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards and
the related interpretations, and made adjustments and
estimates are prudent and reasonable.

B2 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥z IH8ERE R A 7
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net
current liabilities of RMB191,174,000. In view of
this circumstance, the Directors have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity and performance
of the Group and its available sources of finance
in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern.
Based on future projection of the Group’s profit and
cash inflows from operations and the anticipated ability
of the Group to obtain continued bank loans and
financial support from an intermediate parent company,
Puxing Energy, the Directors believe that the Group
will generate sufficient cash flows to meet its liabilities
as and when they fall due in the next twelve months.
Accordingly, the Directors consider that there are no
material uncertainties related to events or conditions
which, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors to the
Shareholders are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on page 69 to 78 of this annual report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year, the Company’s auditor, KPMG,
provided to the Company its audit services in relation
to the review of interim financial report and audit of
annual financial statements. The audit fee paid/payable
to KPMG in respect of the audit services provided was
approximately RMB1,180,000. There was no non-audit
service provided by KPMG during the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lai Chi Fung (“Mr. Lai”) is an employee of the
Company and was appointed as the secretary of the
Company on 21 July 2017. The biography of Mr. Lai
is set out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. Mr. Lai has taken
no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules in the year ended 31 December 2018.
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SHAREHOLDING ANALYSIS g HE o A

Based on the Register of Members of the Company, BBEARRNKREZM XATRZFT—N\F
the shareholding distribution of the Company as at 31 +TZA=+—BHRELIMHBAT:

December 2018 is set out as below:

No. of % of issued

No. of % of Shares share

Size of shareholding Shareholders Shareholders held capital
BT

BREE BEHE HRFEES AEEHEE & N=E 174
1-1,000 1-1,000 51 33.77 5,751 0.00
1,001 - 5,000 1,001 - 5,000 92 60.93 193,000 0.04
5,001 - 10,000 5,001 - 10,000 8 1.99 23,990 0.01
10,001 - 100,000 10,001 - 100,000 4 2.65 196,000 0.04
100,001 and above 100,001 & JA £ 1 0.66 458,181,259 99.91
Total =L 151 100% 458,600,000 100%
Details of the substantial Shareholders are disclosed FERROFBRAFRESSME ([EER
in the section headed “Interests and Short Positions of RHEREAXRE ] —fiEE-
Substantial Shareholders” in the Directors’ Report of
this annual report.
Based on publicly available information and within the BEAHEHERESHMMN R N\F+=
Directors’ knowledge, approximately 34.58% of the A=T—HBARALTHBLZ4.58%H AR
Shares were held by the public as at 31 December BERETMELNE101.50E 8B Lo
2018 with a public float capitalisation of approximately
HK$101.50 million.
Certain important Shareholders’ dates in the EEZ-HAVUBRFEMNETREREESERR
coming financial year are set out in the “Shareholder BRAFERIREEHR] -

Information” of this annual report.
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2018 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

At the 2018 annual general meeting held on 8 June
2018 at Kowloon Room |, Mezzanine Floor, Kowloon
Shangri-La, 64 Mody Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
73 participants attended the meeting. Two executive
Directors and two independent non-executive
Directors, including the Chairman (who is also the
chairman of Nomination Committee) and the chairman
of the Audit Committee, attended the meeting along
with the senior management and external auditor of the
Company. There was a high level of votes approving
the following major items:

- Consider and receive of the 2017 audited
consolidated financial statements (97.87%)

- Declare of 2017 final dividend (100%)
- Re-elect of retiring Directors (100%)

- Re-appoint of KPMG as the Company’s auditor
(100%)

- Grant general mandate to issue new Shares not
exceeding 20% of the Shares in issue (97.86%)

- Grant general mandate to repurchase Shares of
not exceeding 10% Shares in issue and extend
of general mandate granted to the Directors
(approximately 100%)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Group recognises Shareholder’s rights in
exercising control proportionate to their equity
ownership. As one of the measures to safeguard
Shareholders’ interest and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at the Shareholder’s meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of Director(s),
for Shareholder’s consideration and voting. All
resolutions put forward at Shareholders’ meeting
will be voted by way of poll, which is conducted and
scrutinised by the Company’s share registrar. Poll
results are announced and posted on the website of
both the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written request to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specify in such
request; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the submission of such request. If within
twenty-one days of such submission the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, Shareholder(s) may
do so in the same manner.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’
enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to
the Board in writing to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong or by email for the
attention of the secretary of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, no person other than a Director
retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a
Director at any general meeting unless a written notice
signed by a Shareholder (other than the person to
be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention
to propose such person for election and also a written
notice signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
head office of the Company or at the share registrar
of the Company provided that the minimum length
of the period, during which such written notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if
the written notices are submitted after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election) the period for lodgment of such written
notice(s) shall commence on the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior

B6 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥z IH8ERE R A 7
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to the date of such general meeting. Accordingly, if a
Shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting of the Company wishes to propose
a person for election as a Director at the general
meeting, he/she can deposit a signed written notice
of the intention to propose a person for election as a
Director and a signed written notice by that person
of his/her willingness to be elected together with his/
her particulars (such as qualification and experience)
and information as required to be disclosed under Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules at the head office of the
Company at Tower I, No.32 Lingyin Road, Xihu District,
Hangzhou 310007, Zhejiang Province, PRC or at the
share registrar of the Company, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The period for lodgment of the
notices required will commence no earlier than the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such general meeting,
and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at
least seven days.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The up-to-date consolidated version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company (in both English and Chinese) is available
on both the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. There is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has an overall responsibility for maintaining
a sound and effective system of risk management and
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness,
particularly in respect of the controls of financial,
operational, compliance and risk management, to
safeguard Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets. The Board should ensure that review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems has been conducted at least
annually.
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The Group has not established an internal audit
department and its internal audit function is maintained
by the financial management department of the
Company with the supervision of the Audit Committee.
During the year, the Board, as supported by the
Audit Committee, has conducted a review on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group. The Board is satisfied
that, based on the information provided and on its
own observation, the present risk management and
internal control systems are effective and adequate
for the nature and size of the Group’s operations and
business.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company’s dividend policy enunciated at the time
of its initial public offering in 2009 is that it will pay
approximately 20%-30% of the net profit attributable
to the Shareholders as dividend. The Board has no
present intention to change the policy. However, the
payment and amount of any dividends in the future will
be at the discretion of the Board and will depend upon
the Company’s earnings, financial conditions, cash
requirements and availability, and other factors. There
is no assurance that the amount of dividend payment
or the timing of such payment, or whether the dividend
distribution will occur as intended.

B8 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥z IH8ERE R A 7
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT >

KPME

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders
of Amber Energy Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Amber Energy Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 79 to 191,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together
with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the
Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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B M2 BE R

Assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

AEEREREEENED

Refer to note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements

B2 & IR M i 2(b)

The Key Audit Matter
E R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAMENAERZEE

At 31 December 2018, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB191,174,000.
RZE-NF+_A=+—H BE5ERHEEFE
AR #191,174,0007T °

The directors evaluated the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern based on projections
of the Group’s profit and cash inflows from
operations and the ability of the Group to obtain
or renew bank loans and obtain financial support
from an intermediate parent company to finance
its continuing operations. As a result of their
assessment, the directors believe that the Group will
generate sufficient cash flows to meet its liabilities
as and when they fall due in the next twelve
months and concluded that there are no material
uncertainties related to events or conditions which,
individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
EERBEHEEESERN NS ME TR A K
EEENSHEMRTERRNEZESARESH
BXHAREBERLELRMESHRENUTHRES
EiEKER N R EERREEEEELAR
HOREREARART _EAEEINHSFETE
& WEHARSEA AN EBYEEENF
BREFENELEARENFTHEABAGHANEKR
PHEEMEFE -

Our audit procedures to assess whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern included the
following:

BB REFERETERERFENREYEEEN
FERERNELEBERRENETEREAEHENE
APHEEN  BENATEE:

° walking through the business planning process
and assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of management’s
internal controls over the assessment of the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
including preparing cash flow forecasts;

e HEBFHEARBHTFTAALFLEEEY
EEERFBELERNTEN NI ETNRT
MITREENR BREGREREEA:

° comparing the future expected cash flows
in management’s cash flow forecast with
the Group’s business plan approved by the
directors;

e BERBEMRESASEAFHRKBHR SN
EEEEERESHENEHTEETLE:

° comparing the available bank facilities and
arrangements with underlying documentation
and assessing the impact of any covenants
and other restrictive terms attached thereto;

e HBERARTEERTHEMBBEXHETLEERK
AT {7t & B B9 1 1] 22 5 B L fth PR 1) 14 16 R P 75 2R
Sof-72 ¥
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The Key Audit Matter
FAREEE

ANDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERMEAPRINTEEZEIEN

We identified the assessment of the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern as a key
audit matter because the Group has been in a net
current liabilities position since 2012 which has
increased the risk that the Group may not be able
to continue to operate as a going concern and
because the assessment of the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern is dependent upon
certain management assumptions and judgements,
in particular in relation to forecasting electricity
tariffs, annual power generation volumes, capacity
tariff, gross margins and natural gas prices and in
assessing the ability of the Group to renew or obtain
new bank facilities upon expiry of the existing bank
facilities.

BME BT HESRERELENRNTER—IHH
REGEE DERESEEBE T ——FRE—EER
FEnBAERR WIEMESRERRERFELES
REELENRR FERTHESEFELEDN
BENTDEARERENS TRER LA CEREE
AEE 2F%EE2 - A=EE EMNERRARE
B ARFEERENRARITEE B H1% & B
SHRITEENRNFZTE-
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assessing the Group’s ability to renew or
refinance existing banking and other financing
facilities upon maturity by performing a
retrospective review of past renewal or roll-
over history of banking and other financing
facilities in prior years, and inspecting loan
agreements and underlying documentation
for bank loans and other financing facilities
borrowed and repaid after year end;

FREBPMERANBEFEZRITEREMBER
EFHRENLSE NTEEEERRERT
MEMREEED MR ETENMRBRE 28
N BmBRFEREEEARERMZRITRE
R B 5 B 2 kit E L AR XX

evaluating the key assumptions adopted by
management in the preparation of the cash
flow forecast, including electricity tariffs,
annual power generation volumes, capacity
tariff, gross margins and natural gas prices by
comparing these key assumptions with the
historical performance of the power plants,
financial budgets approved by the directors
and terms of future electricity supply as agreed
with local governments;
TEERECRERSAREBAKARANE
2R (BREE - 2FLEE - TEEE E
MERRARER) UHZEFERREARSE
BHEERE KREFHENVBERERKLE
Hh AT B B R R BARFEITHLE

i)



The Key Audit Matter
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERMSAPRNAEEZEEN

° comparing future expected cash flows
with historical data, assessing whether
any variations were consistent with our
expectations based on our understanding of
the Group’s business and considering the
accuracy and reliability of past cash flow
forecasts made by management by comparing
them with the current year’s results;

e HBARAREHRESRSHERELEBBEITLER T
HESEEMAEHNFTERMENEEEREE
BzEROER WA EREMELN@AGE
RensRAESFHERETHERAZER
AR R AT S

° assessing the sensitivities of the key
assumptions adopted by management in the
going concern assessment and considering
whether management had incorporated any
bias in the selection of such assumptions.

e HIAEREEBERBLETHPARANEER
ROBEREREEREEEEEEZERIKE
BEEEMARR -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPOR TS+

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

B M2 BE R

EREGAMBHRERT EFAETHEEE
REKENENURBERAFBELCEAHNER
(WER)  URERABECE AETER &k
FEZFEREEEBFRAFIULLE  HHE
HMERNERT R

ERZEEHMESFETEEESREME®
EREMNAE-

RBE ARSI BERRNEAEE

MBS RYURAMBHRRERRES M
AR ERMEBMNEAFERRANEE
BRE LHASRRMER A ZEERS -
BrER ET (EREBE)|E  BRILAIN
EHMAW HABAIRAREOAND  HE
MEMALTBEEHAEETMEE

BERBEESKFNRE ETRERERRE
BRBCERIE TR X —BAMERET
TR R AR RE 3 3R - $8 AR BR ot T DA R R sl SE AR
malE  MESEBRREMEBLELLRA
EFERAVBBRRERERBZTEAM
TS ¥RER PV h O A R TE - RIIA R Y 88 R RO
AR R B RS R R A
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

786

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED 3RIARERBIR A A

J
NDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ERBEEZBEAETEANBIRES &M
ERTREHESRRETERNIRERREE U
S API T -

o BRI NFHEEMGFRER M EBERE B
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

B M2 BE R

s HMEEEAKELESFEARNEEN
RRBEABEGHNETEERSFEA B
HEEENFBERERLNELEARE
MEBERIERNEENEANTHEE MEIEL
e MRMRBRAFEERTHEEM -
PIREZBEREPIRFBEBE L ELR
B EHRRAHERIE - MABKET
o AIBRFIEEETHMNER - KM
2R ABE T EZ AN E B B AT
SRR RE RERIE A RRFERK
BAAEERERETEEBERFELS

ER17E-

o HESRAVBBRRNEBZHIA EF
AR (BREEBRFHE) UAREEMBE
BREGAERTBS2H 277 AR A
AR5 K EIH -

s HNGEHESEEBTERAEXKTDH
BERNTED LEENETRE  ABAR
BUBHREAEREA -AMERESRERE
AT EERRE - RADAERSRK
MEFERER
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Fung Ping Kwong.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

29 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOS

M A E 22
:%I-.I_\I:l H fm

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE —F—N\F+_A=+—HIFEF

2018 2017
—EB—)\F Pmkiarss

Revenue

Operating expenses

Fuel consumption
Depreciation and amortisation
Repairs and maintenance
Personnel costs
Administrative expenses
Sales related taxes

Other operating expenses

Profit from operations

Finance income
Finance expenses

Net finance costs

Other income

Profit before taxation

Income tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit for the year
Earnings per share

Basic (RMB)

Diluted (RMB)

The notes on pages 86 to 191 form
consolidated financial statements.

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(I AR¥TTt PN

I £ 4 281,625 348,364
EERX
PR E FE (69,402) (141,161)
P& M (57,770) (55,791)
HiERRE (3,077) (5,136)
8 Tk A 5(b) (29,414) (26,133)
THRRAX (24,782) (24,349)
HEMRETIE (2,099) (2,191)
Hi &R (1,348) (3,041)
BEBH 93,733 90,562
B 7% U A 311 494
X (29,707) (33,210)
BN F5R 5(a) (29,396) (32,716)
H AU A 6 5,979 2,153
P& i B itd F 5 70,316 59,999
PRt 7 (24,736) (25,831)
EREF 45,580 34,168
LT &FBRE:

ViN/NETE Eodi § 8 45,580 34,222

FEVE PR = = (54)
E R 45,580 34,168
B2

EX(ARE) 10(a) 0.075

BE(ARE) 10(b) 0.075
part of these FOOE1TEFH M Rt TR B HRE —

e
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 JEONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
' OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CeBmREMEEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE—F—\F1-H=+—HItEF
2018 2017

s LIS T —

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET PN S

Profit for the year FE Rt 45,580 34,168

Other comprehensive income for the R H 2 EHUI A
year (after tax and reclassification (BBEEREHSEAEE) :

adjustments):
ltems that may be reclassified HEnEHIEE
subsequently to profit or loss: B=mrIEE
Exchange differences on translation B"EBINE A
of financial statements of R e e
overseas subsidiaries M 5 Z & (12,939) 15,217
Total comprehensive income FRZEKBNERE
for the year 49,385
Attributable to: LT &FBE:
Equity shareholders of the Company KAREERER 49,439
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A 2 (54)
Total comprehensive income FRETEBAEE
for the year 49,385
The notes on pages 86 to 191 form part of these FEOE19TEFEM T AL EHREMEHREK —
consolidated financial statements. EiSs)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITIO

e BRI R &R

At 31 December 2018
RZFE—-NF+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
LI
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
e Nk hen | ARBT T
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment M B M 11 1,061,206 1,107,274
Lease prepayments EREE 12 44,815 46,152
Intangible assets BEEE 13 1,898 -
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 21(b) 3,753 4,680
1,111,672 1,158,106
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 14,829 14,206
Trade and other receivables FEUE F K H 58 15 32,795 35,014
Prepaid income tax TERFTIEH 21(a) - 6381
Cash and cash equivalents HekBE2EEY 16 74,860 75,862
122,484 125,763
Current liabilities REBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE 18 257,705 253,224
Trade and other payables BB S REMBIE 19 52,767 46,405
Current taxation BN ER 7 18 21(a) 3,186 -
313,658 299,629
Net current liabilities RENEEFHE (191,174) (173,866)
Total assets less current liabilities (AEERRIHEE 920,498 984,240

The notes on pages 86 to 191 form part of these EeE 101 HEFEM AN SRS MERE —
consolidated financial statements. 2R o
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At 31 December 2018
RZFE-NFE+=ZA=+—H

ONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
INANCIAL POSITION

e B R AIR O AR

2018
—EB-N\E
Note RMB’000

(i AR T

Non-current liabilities REEE
Shareholder’s loan REE K 17 126,227
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE 18 209,500
Deferred revenue PRI Wz 20 12,099
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 21(b) 29,651
377,477
NET ASSETS HEFE 543,021

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EERRG#E
Share capital & 7 22(b) 40,149
Reserves Eke] 502,338

Total equity attributable to equity RATERBREEWN

shareholders of the Company HREDS 542,487
Non-controlling interests iR 534
TOTAL EQUITY EELS 543,021

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 29 March 2019.

WEI Junyong
5 o]
Director

EF

The notes on pages 86 to 191 form part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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GU Genyong
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Director
EFE

F86E11BEFTEH M ALESRE
2L e

2017
—F+tF
RMB’000
ARBTT

114,782
312,000
12,013
23,572

462,367

521,873

40,149
481,190

521,339

534

521,873
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUI
BERRBER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—F—)\F+-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AATERREER
Statutory (Accumulated Non-
Share Share Capital Merger surplus Translation losses)/ controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  retained profits Subtotal interests equity
ERRA (ZitBR) AR
& RGEE  AARE A0RR ke EXEE /REEA It (3 LiEs
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Wit ARETTE  ARETE ARMTR ARNTR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARBTn ARETR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2017 RZ%-t%
-R-BHE8 40,149 103,243 24,189 306,883 47,769 (30,403) (7.917) 483,913 588 484,501
Changes in equity for 2017 “E-tERLED
Profit for the year ERiaf - - - - - - 34,222 34,222 (54) 34,168
Other comprehensive income E2EUA - - - - - 15,217 - 15,217 - 15217
Total comprehensive income SERAEE - - - - - 15,17 34,222 49,439 (54) 49,385
Dividends approved in respect of BHENEERE
previous year 2i) - (12,019 - - - - - (12,013) - 12,013)
Appropriation to reserves BERE 2(0)) - - - - 4,972 - 4972 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2017 R-§-t&
+ZB=t+-0tgE 40,149 91,230 24,189 306,883 52,741 (15,186) 21,333 521339 534 521873
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FARRBRFEE
Statutory Non-
Share Share Capital Merger surplus  Translation Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Subtotal interests
ETRR Fak
& Rit &R Axfih Bkt Bt B RE@H it i
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
liEs ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2018 R-B-\&
-A-BHER 91,230 24,189 306,883 (15,186) 21,333 521,339
Changes in equity for 2018 —E-\ERREE
Proft for the year FRER - 45,580 45,580
Other comprehensive income Af2ERA (12,939) - (12,939)
Total comprehensive income 2EHAEE (12,939) 45,580 32,641
Dividends approved in respect of B ENEERE
previous year 22(d)i) (11,493) (11,493
Appropriation to reserves RERE 2(c)() - -
Balance at 31 December 2018 Ro%-A%
TZRZ+-BMhER 79,737 2,189 (28,125) 60,846 542,487
The notes on pages 86 to 191 form part of these FOOE1IEFH M A R FHREaMEHRE —
consolidated financial statements. e
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE—_F

—NFEF+ZA=1—

HiFFE

Note
Bt 5
Cash flows from operating activities EZFHRBRLRE
Profit for the year F N
Adjustments for: KHEIER -
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- -BERZBEITE
equipment 5(c)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 5(c)
Amortisation of lease prepayments A TE S H 5(c)
Net finance costs B TS P ANV 58 5(a)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME BEX
plant and equipment RIEEEFE 5(c)
Tax expense MIAF X 7(a)
Changes in working capital: EEECEE:
Increase in inventories FEEM
Decrease in trade and JEWE 5 &
other receivables oAb FRIE R A
Increase/(decrease) in trade and FER B 5 K H M 5IE
other payables and deferred revenue A R 3 JE g 75 48 jJD/
-2
Cash generated from operating BETHHEEHSE
activities
Interest paid 2 F S
Income taxes paid B FTER
Net cash generated from operating & FEFTE
activities H&F8E
84 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED 3 ¥R 4 R A 7

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
AREFx

55,826
607
1,337
29,396

232
24,736

157,714
(623)

1,741

162,157

(18,011)
(13,863)

130,283

ONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2017
—F—+tF
RMB’000
ARBTT

34,168

54,454

1,337
32,716

912
25,831

149,418
(618)

27,285

(1,869)

174,216

(25,172)
(19,998)

129,046



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
TAEREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE —F—N\F+_A=+—HIFEF

2018 2017

—EF-)\F EErts

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iz PELAe ARETT

Cash flows from investing activities RZEEFHABRLRE

Interest received 2 F S 311 494
Payment for purchase of property, WBEWE BER

plant and equipment BLEANEN (13,098) (17,092)
Payment for intangible assets X EEEENIE (2,505) -
Other cash flows arising from REFHELEN

investing activities HEMAERE 1,845
Net cash used in investing activities %X &;EFEFTAR €% (15,292) (14,753)
Cash flows from financing activities RIZEEFIHRABRLRE
Proceeds from interest-bearing ST EBEMEHIE

borrowings 16(b) 57,000 104,000
Repayment of interest-bearing BEFEEBE

borrowings 16(b) (161,500) (251,000)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders & {5 2~ 2 B4 25 A% 5D

of the Company % 2 22(d)(ii) (11,493) (12,013)
Net cash used in financing activities RZ;EEFTAR&FE (115,993) (159,013)
Net decrease in cash and cash HeERREEEY

equivalents i (1,002) (44,720)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—HMBEERES

1 January ZEY 120,582
Cash and cash equivalents at R+-—A=+—HH

31 December RERBE%EEY 16(a) 75,862
The notes on pages 86 to 191 form part of these FEOE1TEFEM T AL ARG M EmEK —
consolidated financial statements. Eibs)
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REPORTING ENTITY AND BACKGROUND
INFORMATION

Amber Energy Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 8
September 2008 under the Companies Law, Cap
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares
were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 10 July 2009.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
are the development, operation and management
of power plants.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), which collective term includes all
applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs), International
Accounting Standards (IASs) and
Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group
are disclosed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2(e) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had net
current liabilities of RMB191,174,000 (31
December 2017:RMB173,866,000). In view
of this circumstance, the directors have
given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and
its available sources of finance in assessing
whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going
concern.

Based on future projection of the Group’s
profit and cash inflows from operations and
the anticipated ability of the Group to obtain
continued bank loans and financial support
from an intermediate parent company,
Shanghai Pu-Xing Energy Limited (“Puxing
Energy”), the directors believe that the
Group will generate sufficient cash flows
to meet its liabilities as and when they fall
due in the next twelve months. Accordingly,
the directors consider that there are no
material uncertainties related to events or
conditions which, individually or collectively,
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and
have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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B I B MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”) which is the functional
currency of the Group’s subsidiaries located
in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). All financial information presented
in RMB has been rounded to the nearest
thousands, except when otherwise indicated.
The functional currency of the Company and
its subsidiaries in Hong Kong is Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”").

Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTM ‘

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates
(Continued)

The key sources of estimation uncertainty are
as follows:

(i)

(i)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking
into account the estimated residual
value.

Management reviews annually the
useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there
are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group tests whether property, plant
and equipment suffered any impairment
whenever an impairment indication
exists. In accordance with note 2(l), an
impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the carrying amount
of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. It is reasonably possible, based
on existing knowledge, that outcomes
within the next financial period that
are different from assumptions could
require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates
(Continued)

(iii) Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in respect of
unused tax losses and deductible
temporary differences are recognised
and measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the
assets, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. In determining
the carrying amounts of deferred tax
assets, expected taxable profits are
estimated which involves a number of
assumptions relating to the operating
environment of the Group and require a
significant level of judgment exercised
by the directors.

(e) Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of new
IFRSs and amendments to IFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

° IFRS 9, Financial instruments
o IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

° IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTM |

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Changes in accounting policies

(f)

(Continued)

None of these developments have had a
material effect on how the Group’s results
and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented.
The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTM |

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a
subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(1)).
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SRR (&)
(Continued)
(9) Goodwill () HE
Goodwill represents the excess of EESEC
()  the aggregate of the fair value of the () FEERENHEERAFE-
consideration transferred, the amount WEE S E TR ERN S
of any non-controlling interest in the HEAEERTMBREKER
acquiree and the fair value of the BEAFE LM B

Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s (i) RUIEE BFrEWHURES T H
identifiable assets and liabilities MEERBEAFTFEMNE
measured as at the acquisition date. o

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess W()EEBAR()ECREE - AIZE

is recognised immediately in profit or loss as RN IERERAERERE

a gain on a bargain purchase. I Es o

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated R ER K AR 25 R E B B Y BR

impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a XBatEENEES @BE?EESQT

business combination is allocated to each BREFNHEIRENNSRS
cash-generating unit (“CGU”), or groups of EEBEA ([ReELEMG]) 3B

CGU, that is expected to benefit from the EAEBAAR W FETRER

synergies of the combination and is tested H(RHEE2() -

annually for impairment (see note 2(1)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTM

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(i)

Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment
are measured at cost, which includes
capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see
note 2(1)).

If significant parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised
only if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group.
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B I B MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(iiij) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off
the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their estimated
residual values using the straight-
line basis method over their estimated
useful lives, and is generally recognised
in profit or loss. Leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term and their useful lives unless
it is reasonably certain that the Group
will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term.

The estimated useful lives of significant
items of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

Buildings and plants 30 years
Major generator 25 — 30 years
equipment

Other machineries 5 — 32 years
Motor vehicles, furniture, 5 — 10 years
fixtures, equipment
and others

Depreciation methods, useful lives
and residual values are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

1)

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent
the cost of land use rights paid to PRC
government authorities. Lease prepayments
are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see
note 2(l)). Amortisation is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the
respective periods of the rights.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life
is finite) and impairment losses (see note

2(1)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from
the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:
Pollutant emission right 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation
are reviewed annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction
or a series of transactions, is or contains
a lease if the group determines that the
arrangement conveys a right to use a
specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series
of payments. Such a determination is made
based on an evaluation of the substance
of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal
form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to
the Group

Assets that are held by Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SRR (#)
(Continued)
(k) Leased assets (Continued) (k) HEESE(Z)
(i) Operating lease charges (i) HEHEERH

Where the Group has the use of assets B%?FEE/E\KEE MRHEEES
held under operating leases, payments HEEEEEDN =R -
made under the leases are charged EE\'J55$§ENITE'EFH$ETF%&%*TH
to profit or loss in equal instalments ERANEER EREBEEE
over the accounting periods covered ?ZHEV} KIBEHE R ER
by the lease term, except where an ST HRATEREAEE D H
alternative basis is more representative ?DB? ERMNHEEREER
of the pattern of benefits to be derived NiERABHENFFELED
from the leased asset. Lease incentives HKHBH HEHEHEKNEE
received are recognised in profit or loss Erest R a RSk

as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are

incurred.
() Credit losses and impairment of () EEEEREERE
assets
(i) Credit losses from financial () T AZEEEE
instruments
(A) Policy applicable from 1 (A) B=ZE—/N\E—H—H#E

January 2018 ERBER

The Group recognises a loss AEER T FIEBERE

allowance for expected credit HMEEBE (FEHEES

losses (ECLs) on the following B)REREEEE:
items:

- financial assets measured — REHEHAKATED
at amortised cost (including PRMEE(BER
cash and cash equivalents, e REEeFED-
trade and other receivables); FEWE 5 Kk H MK

H) ;

Financial assets measured at fair NAFEFENSFEY

value are not subject to the ECL TRV EHEEEEN

assessment. BREE
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

B I B MR

(Continued)

U]

100

Credit losses and impairment of

assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial

instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from

1 January 2018 (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the
present value of all expected
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to
the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following
discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets
and trade and other
receivables: effective
interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTM ‘

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

U]

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from

1 January 2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs
(Continued)

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group
takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or
effort. This includes information
about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of
the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are
losses that are expected to
result from possible default
events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

2
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
()

102

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from

1 January 2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs
(Continued)

- lifetime ECLs: these are
losses that are expected
to result from all possible
default events over the
expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade
receivables are always measured
at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general
economic conditions at the
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS S
ArE MR R AR MY R

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SRR (#)
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of ) EEBEEREEREZ)
assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial () 2ZHITRZIEEEHRE (#Z)
instruments (Continued)
(A) Policy applicable from (A) B=B—N\EFE—H—AB#
1 January 2018 (Continued) BEHBEK (&)
Measurement of ECLs BHEEEEE
(Continued) (%)
For all other financial instruments, HRFBEEMEmMI A
the Group recognises a loss NEEHEREE N2
allowance equal to 12-month AEHEEEENEER
ECLs unless there has been a % BRIEE VIR AR
significant increase in credit risk of eI ANEERREE

the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the
loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit
risk

In assessing whether the credit
risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making
this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event
occurs when the financial asset
is 60 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or
effort.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

104

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from
1 January 2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit
risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial
recognition:

failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

an actual or expected
significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit
rating (if available);

an actual or expected
significant deterioration in
the operating results of the
debtor; and

existing or forecast changes
in the technological, market,
economic or legal
environment that have a
significant adverse effect on
the debtor’s ability to meet
its obligation to the Group.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SRR (#)
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of ) EEBEEREEREZ)

assets (Continued)

M ITRZIEEER (&)

(i) Credit losses from financial (i)
instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from (A) BZE—/N\EFE—H—H#E
1 January 2018 (Continued) BEHBEK (&)
Significant increases in credit EERGREZEE M
risk (Continued) (#%&)

Depending on the nature of
the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed
on either an individual basis or

AR SR T EMNME -
= B R B 28 2 18 h e FR AR
Ty (8 Bl F e sk ﬁ%ﬁ
T o WG AR

ST @ﬂlﬂ%&ﬁ

a collective basis. When the B H = B R %((Zlﬂﬁ
assessment is performed on a AR R EER B AR)
collective basis, the financial LT

instruments are grouped based on

shared credit risk characteristics,

such as past due status and credit

risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each FEHEEBERSHREH

reporting date to reflect changes
in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any

HETENTENRRE
BT E B A HER AR
EERBREY -FAHMEE

change in the ECL amount is BESENTMAEFH IR
recognised as an impairment gain BarERAREKEK
or loss in profit or loss. The Group EE -AEERAEESR
recognises an impairment gain or T A # R E Y=k E

loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
()

106

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from

1 January 2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit
risk (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest
income

Interest income recognised in
accordance with note 2(u) is
calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e.
the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial
asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEREFTHEE (&)
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of ) EEBEEREEREZ)
assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial () BT RZIEEERE (&)
instruments (Continued)
(A) Policy applicable from (A) B-ZE—N\EFE—F—HiE
1 January 2018 (Continued) BEHBEK (&)
Significant increases in credit EERGREZEE M
risk (Continued) (#%&)
Basis of calculation of interest FTEFE WA B EE
income (Continued) (%)
Evidence that a financial asset CREEHREEREDN
is credit-impaired includes the BEBENTITERSE
following observable events: -
- significant financial difficulties - EBABERUH
of the debtor; R &
- a breach of contract, such — B flwmi ks
as a default or delinquency Ree B BISE T A B
in interest or principal NG
payments;
- it becoming probable that — fERAFREKES
the borrower will enter into ETEMBR B E
bankruptcy or other financial 48 :

reorganisation;
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

B I B MR

(Continued)

U]

108

Credit losses and impairment of

assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial

instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from

1 January 2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit
risk (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest
income (Continued)

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active
market for a security because
of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a
financial asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets
or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 REFTHE (£)
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of ) EEBEEREEREZ)

assets (Continued)

M ITRZIEEER (&)

(i) Credit losses from financial (i)
instruments (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from (A) BE=ZE—-/N\E—A—B#
1 January 2018 (Continued) BEHBEK (&)
Write-off policy (Continued) MEEBF (&)
Subsequent recoveries of an BE1& UL B SE AT EH O B B

(B)

asset that was previously written
off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in
the period in which the recovery
occurs.

Policy applicable prior to 1
January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an
“incurred loss” model was used
to measure impairment losses
on financial assets not classified
as at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL) (e.g. trade and other
receivables). Under the “incurred
loss” model, an impairment
loss was recognised only when

FAU B ERFE 7R 18 25 R HE AR

AR R

(B) R=FT—N\F—HA—HH

AR BR

R-ZF—-NF—HF—H
Al [EEEBE]I RN
FHE/\EJrEﬁ'ﬁ?E DRI

ANFEFABEZE

(&R n

FEFABD)NERE
E (Pl s 5 K E
RIB)W R EEE - RIE
EEEBE]ENX R
BEERENETBRERE

there was objective evidence of BT TR

impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment BENTSEERRE:

included:

- significant financial difficulties - EBABEXRUHK
of the debtor; #
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBERBFTHEEX (&)
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of ) EEEERESEREZ)
assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial () EHITRZIEEEFE (Z)
instruments (Continued)
(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 (B) MR=-=|—N\ZFE—H—ABH
January 2018 (Continued) BEHBRK (&)
- a breach of contract, such — EH Pl Rk
as a default or delinquency REEF B (7 B
in interest or principal WARE
payments;
- it becoming probable —  BRATBEREK
that the debtor will enter i /H\ ﬁﬂ B % E
bankruptcy or other financial 48

reorganisation;

- significant changes — Bt m5 - 8EK
in the technological, ERREBERBEEKX
market, economic or legal “@Jﬁﬁ%ﬂiﬂ‘%/\
environment that have an PR F R 2
adverse effect on the debtor;
and
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SRR (#)
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of ) EEBEEREEREZ)

assets (Continued)

M ITRZIEEER (&)

(i) Credit losses from financial (i)
instruments (Continued)

(B) R-—ET—/N\E—HA—HH
BRAMBUR (&)
e % F E S - A
B N5I 77 N ETE S R0
BEE:

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1
January 2018 (Continued)
If any such evidence existed, an
impairment loss was determined
and recognised as follows:

and other financial assets
carried at amortised cost,
impairment loss was
measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present
value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate, where
the effect of discounting was
material. This assessment
was made collectively where
these financial assets shared
similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due
status, and had not been
individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets
which were assessed for
impairment collectively were
based on historical loss
experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective

group.

- For trade and other receivables —
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112

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1
January 2018 (Continued)

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥z 31

If in a subsequent period the
amount of an impairment loss
decreased and the decrease
could be linked objectively
to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment
loss was reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss was only
recognised to the extent
that it did not result in the
asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would
have been determined had
no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1
January 2018 (Continued)

When the recovery of a trade
debtor or other financial
assets carried at amortised
cost was considered doubtful
but not remote, associated
impairment losses were
recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group
was satisfied that recovery
was remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable
was written off against
the gross carrying amount
of those assets directly.
Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged
to the allowance account
were reversed against the
allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance
account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly
were recognised in profit or
loss.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

114

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current
assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold
land classified as lease
prepayments;

- intangible assets; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether
or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENT

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable
amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

116

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥z 31

Recognition of impairment
losses

An impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTM

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals
are recognised.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Credit losses and impairment of

assets (Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and
impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with |IAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial
year.

(m) Inventories

118

Inventories include materials for repairs and
maintenance and spare parts, and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories are initially recorded at cost and
are charged to operating expenses when
used, or capitalised to property, plant and
equipment when installed, as appropriate,
using weighted average cost basis. Cost of
inventories includes costs of purchase and
transportation costs. Provision for inventory
obsolescence is determined by the excess of
cost over net realisable value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS\/

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the
Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less
allowance for credit losses (see note 2(1)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECLs in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(I)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value. Trade and
other payables are subsequently stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

n\/-_]_\
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B I B MR

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(r)

120

Interest-bearing borrowings and
shareholder’s loan

Interest-bearing borrowings and
shareholder’s loan are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings and shareholder’s loan are stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy for borrowing costs (see note 2(x)).

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

A defined contribution plan is a post-
employment benefit plan under which an
entity pay fixed contributions into a separate
entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for the statutory defined
contribution pension plans are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss when they are
due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTM |

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(i)

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax
payable or receivable on the taxable
income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years.
The amount of current tax payable or
receivable is the best estimate of the
tax amount expected to be paid or
received that reflects uncertainty related
to income taxes, if any. It is measured
using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Current
tax also includes any tax arising from
dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset only if certain criteria are met.

2
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FETEE (4)
(Continued)
(s) Income tax (Continued) (s) PFile# (&)
(i) Deferred tax (i) EIEHIE

122

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise
from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions,
all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the
asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS S~

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition
of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and
it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax
asset is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise
from the distribution of dividends are
recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

124

Income tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax
liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and
the following additional conditions are
met:

- in the case of current tax assets
and liabilities, the Company or
the Group intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets
and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTM |

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®)

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sales of goods or the
provision of services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business.

nm
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B I B MR

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

126

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the customer for more
than 12 months, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the
effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and does not
adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period
of financing is 12 months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTM
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEREFTHEE (&)
(Continued)
(u) Revenue and other income (Continued) (u) WEREMUN (Z)
Further details of the Group’s revenue and B A E W N H U A i SR IR
other income recognition policies are as FOE—THBHINWT
follows:
(i) Revenue from sales of electricity () SHEZHBIN
Revenue from sales of electricity is HEENWRRIZMEXES
recognised upon the transmission N B Z- BN RE B E A
of electric power to the power grid FHI?EEEL?ZE RE N
companies, as determined based E2EPNABER-

on the volume of electric power
transmitted and the applicable fixed
tariff rates agreed with the respective
electric power grid companies

periodically.

(i) Capacity tariff revenue (i) ZEZEKA
Capacity tariff revenue is recognised on REBEBRATIKL2ERFNE
a time-apportioned basis by reference BHEREBERIABAEEE
to the installed production capacity of BRERGHEESEERR-

individual power plants and the relevant
capacity tariff rates.

(iii) Revenue from sales of heat (iii) FHEZ DB
Revenue from sales of heat is HER NN RIRFTRXRAE
recognised upon the transmission of MEEEFEHRHBENERE
heat to the third party customers, as NEBTE REXTE=ZFF
determined based on the volume of P& -

heat transmitted and the applicable
unit price agreed with the respective
customers periodically.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv) Interest income

(v)

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance)
of the asset (see note 2(l)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised
in the statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received
and the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are initially recognised as
deferred income at fair value and then
recognised in profit or loss as other
income on a systematic basis over the
useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS S

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of foreign operations are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are
translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

n\/-_r\
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Dividends

(x)

130

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the
period in which they are declared.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditures for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTM ‘

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y) Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

() has control or joint control over
the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of the Group of which the
other entity is a member);
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(y) Related parties (Continued)

132

(b) (Continued)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;

(v) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viil The entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group or
to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS S

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE

A number of the Group’s accounting policies
and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities. Fair values have been determined
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
based on the following methods. When applicable,
further information about the assumptions made
in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes
specific to that asset or liability.
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3 DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses observable market data
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised
into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based
on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:

(a)

(b)

134

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables

The carrying values of these financial assets
and liabilities approximate their respective
fair values due to the short maturities of
these instruments.

Interest-bearing borrowings and
shareholder’s loan

The carrying amounts of interest-bearing
borrowings and shareholder’s loan
approximate their fair values based on the
borrowing rates currently available for bank
loans with similar terms and maturity.
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4

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are
development, operation and management of
power plants.

Revenue comprises volume tariff revenue,
capacity tariff revenue and revenue from
sales of heat.

Volume tariff revenue represents the sale of
electricity to power grid companies.

Capacity tariff revenue represents a subsidy
income from power grid companies,
following a reduction in the annual planned
power generation volume of the Group’s
power plants for supply to the power grid
companies and changes in the electricity
tariff policies applicable to the Group since
2015, pursuant to the “Notice Regarding the
Trial Implementation of Dual Tariff for Natural
Gas Power Generating Units in Zhejiang
Province” issued by the Price Bureau of
Zhejiang Province in June 2015.

Revenue from sales of heat represents the
sale of heat to third party customers.

Volume tariff revenue and revenue from sales
of heat are recognised upon the transfer of
products.

Capacity tariff revenue is recognised based
on the installed capacity and capacity tariff
on a monthly basis.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WERDEH®E (&)
(Continued)
(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) 4z (&)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) Han#HE
Disaggregation of revenue from REEEmMD
contracts with customers by major Eog T

products is as follows:

2018
—E-—N\F
RMB’000
AR®TX

Revenue from contracts with  BIREI #5420
customers within the scope S5 HEE A

of IFRS 15 EFEaHWE
Disaggregated by major products 1% = Z & an 7 48
Electricity: BN
— Volume tariff revenue —BEEEEWA 42,568
— Capacity tariff revenue —REBBWRA 213,158
255,726
Heat: oAy
— Revenue from sales of heat —HERNIA 25,899
281,625
1368 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥ ¥182 5 & R 2 7
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BREFPADONK

2017
—t%F
RMB’000
ARBTT

128,616
211,940

340,556

7,808

348,364
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(a) Revenue (Continued)

(i) Disaggregation of revenue
(Continued)

The Group’s customer base is
concentrated and includes only one
customer with whom transactions
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenues. In 2018, volume tariff revenue
and capacity tariff revenue from this
customer, including its subsidiaries,
amounted to RMB255,726,000
(2017: RMB340,556,000). Details of
concentrations of credit risk arising
from this customer are set out in note
23(a).

(b) Segment reporting
The most senior executive management have

identified four operating segments, which are
the four power plants, namely:

° Amber (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal
Power Co., Ltd. (“Anji Power Plant”);

o Zhejiang Amber De-Neng Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“De-Neng
Power Plant”);

o Zhejiang Amber Jing-Xing Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“‘Jing-Xing
Power Plant”); and

o Hangzhou Amber Blue Sky Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“Blue Sky
Power Plant”).

n\/-_l_\
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

138

The most senior executive management
are of the view that these four operating
segments contribute to the entire revenue
of the Group and should be aggregated to
a single reportable segment of the Group,
power segment, for financial reporting
purpose as they have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
nature of products, production processes,
the type of class of customers and the
regulatory environment. Accordingly, no
segmental analysis is presented.

All of the Group’s revenue is derived from
the volume tariff revenue, capacity tariff
revenue and revenue from sales of heat
in the PRC, and the principal non-current
assets employed by the Group are located
in the PRC. Accordingly, no analysis by
geographical segments has been provided
for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

(@) Net finance costs

e B RS R AR MY RE

BR 3 B0 0& A

BRBEADE M T (FEA) A TR B &

EH

(a) MABSRIAFE

2018
—E—N\F
RMB’000
ARBTR

Interest income

B WA

(311)

Finance income

Interest on interest-bearing
borrowings and shareholder’s loan

BB

AFREERERERNE

(311)

Total interest expense on
financial liabilities

ERABEMNEFAR

Net foreign exchange loss HNEE 5 1B 5
Bank charges RITE A
Finance expenses MR
Net finance costs B 15 P AN 58

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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2017
—T—+tF
RMB’000
AREFT T
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5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 5 BRBAEIER (&
(b) Personnel costs (b) EIRE
2018 2017
=t PV
RMB’000 RMB’000
NS A AR T
Wages, salaries and other benefits e IERHMER 27,253 24,081
Contribution to defined TR RET B

140

contribution plan

2,161 2,052

29,414 26,133

The Group participates in pension funds
organised by the PRC government.
According to the respective pension fund
regulations, the Group is required to pay
annual contributions. The Group remits
all the pension fund contributions to the
respective social security offices, which are
responsible for the payments and liabilities
relating to the pension funds. The Group has
no obligation for payment of retirement and
other post-retirement benefits of employees
other than the contributions described
above.
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e B RS R AR MY RE

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 5 PBRBBIRR (&)
(b) Personnel costs (Continued) (b) EIME(EZ)
The Group also operates a defined REBETTRBAESE AR EK
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund Bl BAEBEREBEAEANZE
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF BRIV EHEHIFEAFNMEREESRIK
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident BRIEE ([BESFTE]) - H5ki%
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its BEEEAFESEOLLEL  WRIR
employees employed by the Group in Hong BRECTEBRREINREER
Kong. Contributions are made based on a M- BABEAENEERBILE
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries BESRE HBASEEESAE
and are charged to profit or loss as they B AEENEETHANTIARE
become payable in accordance with the CEEIREEEEREE -
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
(c) Other items (c) H#IEH
2018 2017
b LIS — T+ F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT PN A
Operating lease charges KEHSER 1,115 1,077
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME BE X
plant and equipment REEEFE 232 912
Depreciation (note 11) e (MEsE11) 55,826 54,454
Amortisation of lease prepayments TEHES®HE (ME12)
(note 12) 1,337 1,337
Amortisation of intangible assets mvEESE (WHF13)
(note 13) 607 -
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN BN &
— audit services —ZH RS 1,180 1,311
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 =% — \EF#H % 141



Clk e

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nv-_r\
6 OTHER INCOME 6 HMWA
2018 2017
—E-N\E —+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
N AR TT
Government grants BT 48 B 5,979 2,153
Government grants represent unconditional BN EEERZE T - N\F+ A
government grants of RMB5,617,000 (2017: = +—HIFERTAEENEGKH K
RMB1,857,000) awarded to the Group and the T B A R #5,617,0000 (—ZF —+
amortisation of deferred government grants of F: AR ®1,857,0007T) & # $4 IE & X
RMB362,000 during the year ended 31 December ¥ fh Bh A R #362,00000 (- —+4F:
2018(2017: RMB296,000). AR #296,0007T ) °
7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HEBERRANAEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Income tax in the consolidated (a) ZEEBRARFBHRIE:
statement of profit or loss represents:
2018 2017
ot VIS — T — &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT PN A
Current tax B EA®L 1S
PRC Corporate Income Tax A ST IS AR 12,724
(Over)/under provision in respect of  LATF G [E (HBEEE)
prior years BETRE 1,140
13,864
Deferred tax BEBIE
Origination and reversal of temporary = 58 #) & 4 K # (O
differences 11,967
Total income tax expense in the REERKROER
consolidated statement of Sz 48 %8
profit or loss 25,831
142 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED 3% 185 5 A 18 24 7
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represents:
(Continued)

(i)

(i

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations
of the Cayman Islands, the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman lIslands.

No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made for the
subsidiaries located in Hong Kong as
these subsidiaries did not have any
assessable profits subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: Nil).

The provision for PRC Corporate
Income Tax is based on the respective
Corporate Income Tax rates applicable
to the subsidiaries located in the PRC
as determined in accordance with
the relevant income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC.

According to the PRC Corporate
Income Tax Law, the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to
the unified tax rate of 25%.

The PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
and its relevant regulations impose a
withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced
by a tax treaty or arrangement, for
dividend distributions out of the PRC
from earnings accumulated from 1
January 2008. Undistributed earnings
generated prior to 1 January 2008 are
exempted from such withholding tax.
As at 31 December 2018, deferred tax
liabilities of RMB29,651,000 (2017:
RMB23,572,000) have been recognised
in connection with the withholding
tax that would be payable on the
distribution of the retained profits of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries.
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7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REBBERANAES (7

(b) HERBEFHMBRIRRAIAS

at it FIH AR -

2018
—EB—N\F
RMB’000
AR®TX

and accounting profit at applicable tax
rate:
Profit before taxation B 354 Al A

Notional tax on profit before taxation, & A& F 8 % 3 F2 1B 3%
calculated at the rates applicable to 8 7%8 B X #9 & 7 i

profits in the countries concerned BRAE

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A~ 8] 171 5 5 KO B 765 52 &
Tax effect of unused tax losses not AERH AP IBEIE

recognised ORR S

Tax effect of prior years’ unrecognised = )BT EE R ER

70,316

temporary differences utilised ETHREZENHETE (2,555)

(Over)/under provision in prior years B FE (HBEEE)

(417)

6,079

24,736

BETR
Withholding tax on profits retained by /1 B Bff B A &7 88 & F 89
PRC subsidiaries B
Actual tax expense ERBIERX
144 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED 3% 1825 5 18 2 7

2017
—+tF
RMB’000
ARET T
59,999
18,096

173
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(2,528)

1,140
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DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Executive directors
Mr. Wei Junyong
Mr. Gu Genyong

Non-executive directors
Mr. Li Jinquan
Mr. Zhang Lianghua

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Tse Chi Man
Mr. Yu Wayne W.
Mr. Yao Xianguo

BiTES
REELE
ERAEE

ENITES
FERAEE
FRELE

BIkBTES
ATNEE
AREESE
HEELE

Directors’
fee

isne
RMB’000

AREFR

e B RS R AR MY RE

EEME
BIFEE N FENFE3831)ER AT (3
BEEENEER)BOIERBENES
e

Year ended 31 December 2018
BEZ-F-\F+-BA=t+-HL%E

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

Fig 2R
BEYiG
RMB’000
ARETT

Retirement

Discretionary
bonuses  cont

scheme
ributions

BREL  BHGTEIEX

RMB’000

RMB’000

ARETR  ARETR

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —Z— \FERH
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8 DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION (Continued) 8 EEME (£
Year ended 31 December 2017
HE-Z—tET-A=T-HIFE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
¥4 ZRR
2k ENF &= WEEL  RINEIER @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETn AR®Tr ARETR ARETR
Executive directors BiTES
Mr. Wei Junyong BOBEEE(RZZ—+F
(redesignated as executive director NANBRATARTES
on 8 June 2017) - - - - -
Mr. Gu Genyong (appointed on 8 June 2017) BURK &4 (R —+ &
~NANBEZE) - 240 484 36 760
Mr. Chai Wei (resigned on 2 June 2017) KRAE (RZT—+F
NAZREBI) - 195 553 9 757
Non-executive directors ERITESE
Mr. Liu Xuanhua (resigned on 2 June 2017) SIZZ%4 (RS —+&
NAZAEE) - - - - -
Mr. Li Jinquan FEREHE
Mr. Zhang Lianghua (appointed on RRELE (R4
8 June 2017) ~ANBEZE) - - - - -
Mr. Wei Junyong (redesignated as BHUBEE(RZT—tF
executive director on 8 June 2017) NANBREERITES - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors ~ BIEHITESE
Mr. Tse Chi Man MEXRE 167 - - - 167
Mr. Yu Wayne W. ARELE 167 - - - 167
Mr. Yao Xianguo EE LA 167 - - - 167
501 435 1,037 45 2,018

No emoluments were paid by the Group during
the year to directors in connection with their
retirement from employment with the Group,
or inducement to join. The director emolument
for Mr. Wei Junyong for the year ended 31
December 2018 was borne by Puxing Energy, the
intermediate parent company of the Company,
who has waived its right to seek reimbursement
from the Group.

146 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥z 8RB R A 7

FRN- - AEESERNESHBXEAMNSA
AEBNREMIN TESEHE  EE5
HEREBEZ-_Z—\F+=_A=+—H
FFENMEHARRNEES AR Y
EREAE  MRERERRARRBE
B HE R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTM
ArE MR R AR MY R

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9 EeHFAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest rEEBREGaHFALTHR —R(ZF
emoluments, one (2017: two) is the director —‘ti'ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%§$ H OB & 4% 58 m0 BT
whose emolument is disclosed in note 8. The HEma (ZE—+tF:=H) AL
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the E’]@)ﬂﬁ,\mﬁﬁﬁﬂ—l—-
other four (2017: three) individuals are as follows:
2018 2017
b VI T —
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT NS
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE FrekHEMmEH 1,812 927
Contributions to defined contribution plan & 28t 35T 2l 3% 100 86
1,912 1,013
The emoluments of the four (2017: three) HE(ZE—tEF : ZR)EaFALTH
individuals with the highest emoluments are within B & T Z 7% 7T £1,000,000%8 T (= F
the band of HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000 (2017: HK$ —+tF : ZF L E1,000,000/87T) °
nil to HK$1,000,000).
No emoluments were paid by the Group during FRN AEESERAERS T EERR
the year to the five highest paid employees in S R DN BE 7N £ B 9 52 B) n m) L S A5 B
connection with their retirement from employment & o
with the Group, or inducement to join.
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

148

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB45,580,000 (2017: RMB34,222,000)
and the weighted average of 458,600,000
(2017: 458,600,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share was the same as
basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017
as there were no dilutive potential shares
during the year.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥z 8RB R A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

11

e B RS R AR MY RE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 Y% BERSZE
Motor
vehicles,
furniture,
Buildings Major fixtures,
and generator Other  equipment Assets under
plants  equipment machineries  and others construction Total
RE R
TERE RE RER
BFRERE i Hib b EREE zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETn ARETn ARETr ARETR ARET:
Cost: A
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+5-A-A 272,379 1,236,716 180,480 16,400 27,643 1,733,618
Additions RE 17 150 638 436 430 1,771
Transfer from assets under construction ~BREEHEREE 2,283 22,186 75 - (24,544) -
Disposals RE (215) (61) (1,938) (145) - (2,359)

At 31 December 2017 and
1 January 2018
Additions
Transfer from assets under construction
Disposals

RZE—+%+-A=1-H

At 31 December 2018

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses:

At 1 January 2017
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

k=Z-N\E-F-H 274,564 1,258,991 179,255 1,733,030
RE - 3,664 10,869
BRATREE 4,460 2,558 -
RE (1,486) (1,438) (4,650)
RIE-\ETZA=+— 274,748 1,261,965 184,039 1,739,249
RTERAEESE:

RZE—+f5-A-A (71,139) (363,743) (122,120) (14,694) - (571,696)
FRER (7,144) (30,331) (15,860) (1,119) - (54,454)
REEM 65 44 231 54 - 394

At 31 December 2017 and
1 January 2018
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals
Reclassification

RZF—tF+ZA=1-H

k-Z-NE-F-H (78,218)  (394,030)  (137,749) (15,759) (625,756)
FRER (7,599) (42,012) (5,279) (936) (55,826)
REEM 19 931 902 1,687 3,539
EEinL - (10,669) 10,669 - -

At 31 December 2018

(85798)  (445780)  (131,457) (15,008) (678,043)

Net book value:
At 31 December 2018

188,950

816,185 1,061,206

At 31 December 2017

RZE—+F+ZA=1-H 196,346 864,961 41,506 932 3,529 1,107,274

As at 31 December 2018, no property, plant and
equipment were pledged as collateral for bank

RZE-NFE+_A=+—"8 HEY
¥ BEMREBC KT ARITERAIEE

loans (31 December 2017: Nil). m(ZE—+tF+=ZA=+—H:%&)-
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nVT\

Clk e

12 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 12 JEfRHEE
RMB’000
ARET T
Cost: B
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—H—H 59,020
Additions NE -
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZE—+F+ZA=+—HK
EZ—-NF—HA—H
Additions NE
At 31 December 2018 RZEBE—N\F+_A=+—H
Accumulated amortisation: g
At 1 January 2017 —2—+F—H—H (11,531)
Charge for the year FANEMA (1,337)
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZE—+F+A=+—HK
—ZE—N\&F—A—H (12,868)
Charge for the year FRNEH (1,337)
At 31 December 2018 R-—E—N\F+=-HA=+—8 (14,205)
Net book value: BREFE:
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—-NFE+=—A=+—H
At 31 December 2017 R_E—+tF+HA=+—H 46,152

1850

Lease prepayments represent cost of land
use rights in respect of lands located in the
PRC with a lease period of 30 to 50 years
when granted.

As at 31 December 2018, no land use rights
were pledged (31 December 2017: Nil).

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥z 8RB R A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTM

13

e B RS R AR MY RE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 BLEE
Pollutant
emission
rights
HEiSHE
RMB’000
AREEF T
Cost: B
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZEBE—+tF+_A=+—"HK
T—\F—A—H
Additions NE

At 31 December 2018

Accumulated amortisation:
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018

Charge for the year

RZE-NF+-A=+—H

et

RNZE—+tF+_A=1+—HBxK
—T—)\%—H—H
FRNEH

At 31 December 2018

R-ZFE-NF+-_A=+—H

Net book value:

At 31 December 2018

AR R
R-Z—-N\F+-_A=+—H

At 31 December 2017

R—ZZE—+tF+=-_A=+—H -

The amortisation charge of RMB607,000 for the FREHEF S ARBB07,0007TE 5T ALR
year is included in “depreciation and amortisation” BREERAMITEREHE ] F-
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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14 RHBRABMNIKRE
TREHAEIEFEAEEMESLE BEY
BEMNHBRAFNFE -BRBEHEBEIN
PR M ER AL mAgk -

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of
shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

152

Percentage of
Place and date of equ;tgeag:::t::;e e Issued and
establishment/ — fully paid-up/
incorporation FATEEREE Y registered capital
Name of company 3L/ s B Direct Indirect ERTRER/ Principal activity
A REH Ef & #MEX TEER
Amber Bluesky (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% - HK$10,001/ Investment holding
(*Amber Blugsky”) 26 June 2008 HK$20,000 ]
RHER (B)GRAA BEZZT\F 10,0017,/ RARR
([FmEX]) ~AAZTRH 20,0007
Amber Jingxing (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% - HK$10,001/ Investment holding
(*Amber Jingxing’) 26 June 2008 HK$20,000 )
FHRE(FR)ARAF BE_RRNE 1000187,/ REEZR
([FHmE]) ~AZtTAH 20,000/ T
Amber Deneng (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% - HK$10,001/ Investment holding
(*Amber Deneng’) 26 June 2008 HK$20,000 ]
s (B%) ERAA BE-ZTN\F 10,0017,/ RARR
([l ~AAZTRH 20,000 7C
Amber Anji (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% - HK$1/ Investment holding
(“Amber Anji”) 2 September 2008 HK$10,000 )
RRRE (B8)ERAA EE_ZENE 1B/ REER
([FEnRsEl) hRZH 10,0007 7T
Blue Sky Power Plant The PRC - 100% US$17,171,400/ Power generation
15 December 2004 US$17,171,400
EXER ME_TTME 17,171,400% L/ %8
TZATER 17,171 4002 T
Jing-Xing Power Plant The PRC - 100% US$16,660,000/ Power generation
6 January 2005 US$16,660,000
REERH P 16,660,000% 7,/ BE
ZZTn§-RAAA 16,660,000% 7

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥z 8RB R A 7
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B Bt 7% 3R IR B &E

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 RBRRNKRE (&)
(Continued)
Percentage of

Place and date of equlttﬁ'eag‘r:;:taaxe E Issued and

establishment/ — fully paid-up/

incorporation FATBEREE Y registered capital
Name of company PRI/ SRR A AL 3 Direct Indirect ERTRER/ Principal activity
AT &R REH Ef Gk HMEE TEEE
De-Neng Power Plant The PRC - 100% US$18,408,710/ Power generation

18 August 2004 US$18,408,710
BHER G 18,408,710%7T/ %E

ZZEMENATNA 18,408, 710E T
Anji Power Plant The PRC - 100% US$46,011,933/ Power generation and
25 February 2011 US$51,700,000 heat supply

(before 7 August 2018)
ZHER G 46,011933% 7T,/ BN

—Z——%-f-+3A 51,700,000% ¢

(ZE-N\ENALHA)

US$46,011,933/

US$46,011,933

(after 7 August 2018)")
46,011,933%7/
46,011,933% T
(ZE-NENRLAK) O

Wenling Juneng Wind Power The PRC - 68% RMB4,000,000/ Power generation
Generation Co., Ltd. 3 July 2014 RMB50,000,000 (under design and
("Wenling Power Plant’ ) planning stage)
REREENEEERA i AR %4,000,0007T,/ %8
(MREEE]) “E-MEtA=A AR #50,000,0007 (R RAEESR)

m In accordance with the board of director’s resolution dated 7
August 2018, Anji Power Plant reduced its registered capital

from US$51,700,000 to US$46,011,933.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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R 2 EERAGE M E AR H51,700,000F 7T H
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Are B RS RAR MR

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 BWEZ R HMRIE

2018 2017
LIS — T+ F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT PN S

Trade receivables FEWE 5 I8 29,888 22,529
Prepayments A HIE 1,567 2,607
Value added tax recoverable 1PN i Ez gy
within one year EER 7,702
Other receivables H b B W RIE 2,176
35,014
All of the trade and other receivables are expected FTERWE S Rk HEMKIBBRAIN—F
to be recovered within one year. AUk [E o
At 31 December 2018, aging analysis of trade RZZE-N\F+A=+—8 KAEEBEE
receivables of the Group based on the invoice WE 5 5RIBLEZ BHMENRER DT
date is as follows: T
2018 2017
—B—)\F Bttt
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTt PN S
Within 1 month —@ARA 29,888 22,5629
All of the trade receivables of the Group as at 31 RZE—N\F+ZA=+—HB XEEM
December 2018 were fully settled up to the date EREKES ?Alﬁﬁ"@i?ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%iﬁﬁﬂ
of the issuance of these financial statements. BFHHEREES-
154 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED 3 ¥R 4 R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
B 75 ¥ 2= MY =

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 16 REeRBELEEYUREMBESR
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION =g
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) RERRSFF/YHRN:

2018 2017
ZE-)\F Belclrds
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET PN S

Cash at bank RITFERK 10,685 28,999
Cash at other financial institutions FRARHE M & mEENIE S 64,175 46,863

74,860 75,862
Cash at other financial institutions represents FHRREMESBMEENESRTN
the demand deposits at Wanxiang Finance RARBRERFERNMBERAF
Co., Ltd. (“Wanxiang Finance”), a related (IBRB])BERFRC

party of the Company.
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16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising
from financing activities

The table below details changes in the
Group’s liabilities from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.

At 1 January 2018 R=Z-N\%E—-H-H

Changes from financing HEHEREZEE:
cash flows:

Proceeds from new loans HERZFGEHE

Repayment of loans BEER

Total changes from financing REREREZZDOE
cash flows

Exchange adjustments EREE

Interest charge reclassified ENPERERNASKE

as loan
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+-A=1+—H
156 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥4 B AR A 7
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16 BERRATEEYUAREMBRESR

ax (&)

(b) MEFHELBRYHRE

TREMERDFELEARER
Be2BHFHB BERENMIFRE
B -MERDELCABEERS
MELHAKRERERNAEE
RERGEREXRNBRARELDE
EZRERENAE-

Interesting-
bearing Shareholder’s
borrowings loan Total
AREE RERER @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETFT AREFT
(note 18) (note 17)
(BzE18) (BtaE17)

565,224 114,782 680,006

57,000 57,000
(161,500) (161,500)

(104,500) (104,500)

6,481 12,014

5,912 5,912

467,205 126,227 593,432
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS\/
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16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 16 RERREEEYUARAEMB SR
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION ¥ (&)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (b) RIS TEELEEBHEKR (£
from financing activities (Continued)
Interesting-
bearing Shareholder’s
borrowings loan Total
HEEE BREER @it
RMB’ OOO RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT AREBTT
(note 18) (note 17)
(HizE18) (B =E17)
At 1 January 2017 R=%F—-t&—A-H 720,159 120,367 840,526
Changes from financing HERSREZEE:
cash flows:
Proceeds from new loans FERZFEHE 104,000 - 104,000
Repayment of loans BEER (251,000) - (251,000
Total changes from financing BRERSRECEDLE
cash flows (147,000) - (147,000)
Exchange adjustments ERg (7,935) (7,886) (15,821)
Interest charge reclassified ENNERERNAE K E
as loan - 2,301 2,301
At 31 December 2017 R=F—t&E+=A=+-H 565,224 114,782 680,006
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17 SHAREHOLDER’S LOAN

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 RREM

2018 2017
LIS — T+ F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSETT PN R

Principal amount PN ]
Interest payable FERTFIE

120,315 114,782
5,912 -

126,227 114,782

As at 31 December 2018, the outstanding
principal amount of shareholder’s loan due
to Amber International Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Amber International”) was HK$137,315,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB120,315,000)
(31 December 2017: HK$137,315,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB114,782,000)), bearing
interest at 4.9% per annum. The outstanding
principal amount and related interest charge will
be repayable on 30 December 2022.

158 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥z 8RB R A 7

WZZE—-NFE+-_A=+—H" ERIE
HEBREEBR AR ([BRABEE]) B9
RENKREEALEA137,315,0008 7T
(HEERHAR120,315,0007T) (==&
—+t&H+=-HF=+—H:137,315,000/%
TC (FERH ARE114,782,0007T) )
REFELIIUFT B - REEXRESE R
BAEBR_ZE-_—_F+-_A=1+HE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
B 75 ¥ 2= MY =

18 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 18 TEEE

2018 2017
LIS — T+ F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIE PN S

Current B &
Unsecured loans from related parties  #iX##88 5 &3k (M 5F25)
(note 25) 35,000 50,000
Current portion of non-current JEBNER R BB 5 IR A
unsecured bank loans guaranteed EHIRITERD
by a related party (i) B ER &R 43 (i) 77,500 74,500
Current portion of non-current SERNEREIEMEAERTERN
unsecured loans from BNEREE > (KYsE25)
a related party (note 25) 145,205 128,724
257,705 253,224
Non-current FEENEA
Unsecured bank loans guaranteed FR 3 3 5 B AR A MR A 9
by a related party (i) RITE ) 119,500 197,000
Unsecured loans from a related party 5 # B 3& 5 & 7% ([t 5£25)
(note 25) 90,000 115,000
209,500 312,000
467,205 565,224
()  The bank loans are guaranteed by China () ZEFERTEFRHFEEBERERER
Wanxiang Holding Co., Ltd. (“China AR ([FEREM]) (RARH&L
Wanxiang”), ultimate controlling company of PERA A R

the Company.
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B 75 2% MY o

EMENTS

18 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 18 FTEBE (&)
(Continued)
(i)  The Group’s interest-bearing borrowings are (iy AEBEFEEENERHROT:

repayable as follows:

2018
—E-N\EF
RMB’000
AREFR

Within 1 year —FR 257,705

Over 1 year but less than 2 years B —FEMER 169,000
Over 2 years but less than 5 years HBBEMEERFER 40,500

209,500

467,205

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19 ENEZRHEMMKIEA
2018

—F-N\#E

RMB’000

AR®FR

Trade and bill payables ERE ZRIERENRE 3,913
Other payables and accrued expenses H fth &~ 3018 & fE 51 5 % 48,854

52,767

160 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IEIABEIRAR A A

2017
—E—+tF
RMB’000
AREF T

253,224

87,500
224,500

312,000

565,224

2017
—E—+F
RMB’000
AREFTT

2,564
43,841

46,405



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

19

20

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the aging analysis of
trade and bill payables of the Group based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

B %5 S Ak B 5

19 BNESZRHEAMFE (&)

RZZE-N\FE+_A=+—H A~KEHE
NEZRARENERZEZABME
MERE DT

2018 2017
—=—/\F bt -3
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIE PN S

Within 3 months —@BAA 3,480 1,990
Over 3 months but less than 6 months 8@ =18 A8/~ A R 36 104
Over 6 months but less than 1 year  B#@/NEAE—FR 397 470

3,913 2,564

DEFERRED REVENUE

2018 2017
LIS — T+ F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIE PN S

Government grants BT #66 B

12,099 12,013

The government grants are recognised as income
over the periods necessarily to match them with
the related costs of assets constructed which they
are intended to compensate over the periods and
in the proportion in which depreciation on those
assets is charged.

BT RE S EL B P i A Y AR AR AN (D
AN AR AMES) kLR
HIR AR RRA - AR LPIEEZE
BEMSITENLH — e
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B 75 2% MY o

21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 21 HREMBRRRANAEHR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation/(prepaid income (a) GAUBRARNMBENHBIE,
tax) in the consolidated statement of (A F/H)IE:

financial position represents:

2018 2017

k- DG — T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR PNELSws

Provision for PRC Corporate FAPEDEMSHER
Income Tax for the year 17,730 13,864
Provisional Corporate BT EMSH
Income Tax paid (13,863) (19,998)
3,867 (6,134)
Balance of Income Tax provision ERRTFEEMEM
relating to prior years BE SR (681) 5,453
3,186 (681)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) EHEFANEEHESERBRE:
recognised:
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are NTEEEENEEHIBEEERE
attributable to the following: f&:
Assets Liabilities
&E afs

2018 2017 2018 2017
=t T F Rl T F

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETE NS SR AR%TR NS AT

Property, plant and equipment mE BRE LG 727 -
Withholding tax on profits retained by the 7<% & & & B 22 7]

Group's PRC subsidiaries RBEF M (29,651) (23,572)
Government grants DGR - -

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) EEFEEE/ (BE) (29,651) (23,572)
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21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 21 GZEMBRRARAVFAER (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(c) Movement in deferred tax balance (c) FERIBEHRIBEREE

during the year

Withholding

tax on profits

retained

by the

Property, Group’s

plantand Government PRC
equipment grants  subsidiaries Total

F5E

ENELE

nE-RER R
B B HERG fEm#H @zt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARBTT  ARBTRT AR%T:E

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 5,128 2,616 (14,664) (6,925)
Recognised in consolidated REEERRER
statement of profit or loss (3,446) 387 (8,908) (11,967)
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+&
1 January 2018 +ZA=+—-Hk
“Z-\F—HF—H 1,677 3,003 (23,572) (18,892)
Recognised in consolidated RizaBaRER
statement of profit or loss (950) 23 (6,079 (7,006)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=+-8 727 3,026 (29,651) (25,898)
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OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 21 FEMBRRARANAER (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(d) Deferred tax assets not recognised (d) RERWELEHRIESE

Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of the following items,
because it is not probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
Group can use the benefits therefrom.

MABLUATHEERRBELHAE
B REZNAAIERRKERD
i M) AT B AR AR E AR R B A i
MY EELEZ Mot e

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
—“E&-\f¥+=A=+-H —T—+&+ZA=1+—H

Gross
Amount

]
RMB’000

ARBETFT

Deductible temporary differences AMREHER 108,546
Tax losses HIEEE 2,329

110,875

184 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥4 B AR A 7

Tax Gross Tax
effect amount effect

hBve ] nEve
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
I Gl ARBTTE  ARWTR

27,136 118,765 29,691
582 2,329 582

27,718 121,094 30,273
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B %5 S Ak B 5

Balance at 1 January 2018

Changes in equity for 2018:
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

RZF-N\E-A-BHEH
SE-A\EHBEE:
ERER
Az EEA

40,149 91,230 358,044

Total comprehensive income
for the year

FRARARAER

Dividends approved in respect of
previous year

BHENEERS

(11,493)

Balance at 31 December 2018

R=F-\F+ZA=+-H
Jfei ]

40,149 79,737 358,044

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

26,065

26,065

(5,803)

(2,815)

T -N\FEHRSE

(206,046)

(15,200)

(15,200)

(221,246)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 22 EXR-FBEBERE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HEEEBHZ2EE
The reconciliation between the opening and REBEGEERS LD FUHEFR
closing balances of each component of the EHRZHRENGEREREEHK-
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the KABMEREEEBDFYVIRERZ
consolidated statement of changes in equity. BEFBEOT:
Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
The Company xag
Share Share Contributed Capital Translation Accumulated Total
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve losses equity
BE  ROEE HABRR  EiRE  ERRE  RiER ok
Note  RMBOOO  RMB'OOO  RMB'00O  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Wi ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETnT ARETR AREFT ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2017 RoE-t5-A-BMEH 40,149 103243 358,044 26,085 334 (193379 334,456
Changes in equity for 2017 —E-tEEREE:
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (12,667) (12,667)
Other comprehensive income E2ERA - - - - (6,137) - 6,137)
Total comprehensive income FR2ENNEE
for the year - - - - 6137)  (12.667)  (18,804)
Dividends approved in respect of T ERMAEERE
previous year 22(d)(ii) - (12,013) - - - - (12,013)
Balance at 31 December 2017 WR=F—-t#+-A=+-H
ke 40,149 91230 358,044 26,085 (5,303)  (206,046) 303,639
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

22

(Continued)

(b) Share capital

(c)

1686

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BER-EERRE (#£)

(b) HBx&F

2018 2017
—E-0\E ZT—tF
No. of Amount No. of Amount
Note shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
&8 X
fi k58 E FTERT k! AT
Authorised: BE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each &R EE0.10E T 2 L@k 1,000,000,000 0000 1,000,000,000 100,000
2018 2017
—B-\f ZT—tF
Amount Amount
Ordinary shares, No. of Amount  equivalent to No. of Amount  equivalent to
issued and fully paid shares HK$'000 RMB’000 shares HK$'000 RMB’000
EERR &8  SEMAsER &8 oEAZR
ERTRERE BH&E T#T ARETR RiAEA THT  ARETR
At 1 January R—A—8 458,600,000 45,860 LR 458,600,000 45,860 40,149
At 31 December R+ZA=1—-8H 458,600,000 45,860 PR 458,600,000 45,860 40,149
Reserves (c) fi&fE
(i) Share premium () RKRaE
The application of the share premium BRGEERNERATHENRS
account is governed by the Companies RNAVEHRE °
Law of the Cayman Islands.
(i) Capital reserve (i) BXHE
Capital reserve represents the amount BERBEEBEARATNRNBEFE
allocated to the unexercised equity BT EBELSNRITHE
component of convertible bonds issued mE D EDEH SRR
by the Company in the previous years.
AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥ ¥182 5 & R 2 7
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c) Reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the excess
of the aggregate of paid-in capital of
the subsidiaries comprising the Group
pursuant to a reorganisation completed
in June 2009 for the Listing (the
“Reorganisation”) of the Group over the
consideration paid by the Company,
representing the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in
exchange thereof.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares
of Amber Deneng, Amber Jingxing
and Amber Bluesky determined on the
basis of the consolidated net assets
of Amber Deneng, Amber Jingxing
and Amber Bluesky at the date of the
Reorganisation over the nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company in
exchange thereof.

Statutory surplus reserve

Statutory surplus reserves were
established in accordance with the
relevant PRC rules and regulations
and the articles of association of those
companies comprising the Group
which are established in the PRC until
the reserve balance reached 50% of
their registered capital. Appropriations
to the reserves were approved by the
respective board of directors.

B 5 ¥R R Y R

22 BEXR -HERBRE (£)

(c) (&)
(iii) B HE#E

EHFEEREASEETHER
ARBEAEER _ZTTNF
NAREMER 2EH([E
MDEBORAERERAR
REFMNHE (AR FER
RBHBETRONEE) &
B

(iv) B ZER

(v)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —Z— \FEH=5

BABBRERERIABE R
MR LIRINERGAEEF
BEETEMIRIAEE RIPRHA
RIRIABE R DN EM B HH
NP EBEAREIERZIRA
TR EEZE -

EEBERIEE

AE BB EERIETEEH
FTE BORIRIA S A R B A SZEY
AEEE TS RANAMER
MANERS  BEE B ERES
R F & AR H50% 7 LE © f##
BRACERESTSHE-

187



B %5 R Ak B 5

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 22 EXR-RBERE (&
(Continued)
(c) Reserves (Continued) (c) fitfE (&)
(v) Statutory surplus reserve (v) ZERBEFHE (&)
(Continued)

For the entity concerned, statutory
surplus reserves can be used to make
good previous years’ losses, if any,
and may be converted into capital
in proportion to the existing equity

BRI R B HETE BRI E A
AREHENEFENER (1

)

AR EE R A E

Ll EBmKER  EBBRE

B 45

BT RNEME RN

interests of investors, provided that the 25% °
balance after such conversion is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

(d) Dividends (d) B2
(i) Dividends payable to equity () FREMXLAGTEBRER
shareholders of the Company £

attributable to the year

2018 2017
= s T tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT PN
Final dividend proposed after WEREBRIRERN RS
the reporting date of HK$0.035 % B & i%0.035/% 7T
(2017: HK$0.03) per share —E—+F:
0.08%7T) 11,118
The final dividend proposed after the WEPFHEHERBIRRARE
end of the reporting period has not WEANREHFEBERARA
been recognised as a liability at the end i

of the reporting period.
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 22 BEX - -REERE (£)
(Continued)
(d) Dividends (Continued) (d) BE (&)
(ii) Dividends payable to equity (i) PRERBAELSHIEME
shareholders of the Company NEEBRRE L REE
attributable to the previous ®’E

financial year, approved and paid
during the year

2018 2017

=L EYCN —=—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TFR PNLEET

Final dividend in respect of REARET S H
the previous financial year, B REE RS
approved and paid during % B & /%0.037% T
the year of HK$0.03 (ZE—+F:
(2017: HK$0.03) per share 0.03%7T) 12,013
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(e) Capital management

170

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain
a balance between the higher equity
shareholders’ return that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to
the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total debt
(including all interest-bearing borrowings as
well as shareholder’s loan, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position)
less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
is calculated as equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company, as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial
position, plus net debt. The Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to
equity shareholders, issue new shares, return
capital to equity shareholders or sell assets
to reduce debt.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED 3RIARERBIR A A

22 BEXR -HERRBRE (£)

(e) BXER
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 22 BEXR-RBERRE (#)
(Continued)
(e) Capital management (Continued) (e) BXERE (&)
The gearing ratio as at 31 December was as R+ZA=+t—HBHHABRERLX
follows: mnT

2018 2017
SRSl =
RMB’000 RMB’000
LSS ARSTR

Gearing ratio BEBEALE 48.87% 53.68%
23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 23 @M I A
Financial risk management MR ER
Overview HE ik
The Group has exposure to the following risks AEEERHREem T AU TER:

arising from financial instruments:

e credit risk e [EERR
e liquidity risk e MmEBEZER
e market risk o TGER
This note presents information about the Group’s AWF2AEERE L SER
exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s R ER AEEFEREERR
objectives, policies and processes for measuring WER BEEER  UERAEED
and managing risk, and the Group’s management BAREE-
of capital.
(a) Credit risk (a) EER
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to EERRESRIANEFRIRS
the Group if a customer or counterparty HAERBOTAEHNEEMS AEE X
to a financial instrument fails to meet MY BEERR TEREAS
its contractual obligations, and arises B W E P FRIE
principally from the Group’s receivables from
customers.
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

172

Overview (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Exposure to credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. The Group
does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group
are mainly held with well-known financial
institutions. Management does not foresee
any significant credit risks from these
deposits and does not expect that these
financial institutions may default and cause
losses to the Group.

In respect of trade and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are
due within 10 to 30 days from the date of
billing. Debtors with balances that are more
than the credit term given by the Group are
generally requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Exposure to credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, 92.59% (2017: 98.34%)
and 99.15% (2017: 100%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer (including its subsidiaries) and five
largest customers respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. No ECLs were provided as at
31 December 2018 as the Group has limited
customers with no historical credit loss
experience and all the trade receivables as
at 31 December 2018 were fully settled up
to the date of the issuance of these financial
statements. Further quantitative disclosures
in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in note 15.

A=l -

B %5 S Ak B 5

23 EMIA(#)

MEEGEER (&)

FFk (/&)

(a) EER (&)
EERME (&)
FEEEHNEERREIERS
Eﬁﬂﬂ%%%%—ﬁ#xgﬁw
EEBMENTERBRRFZE:
At REBNEAEEETER
Iﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ%ékM%%ﬁﬂ
Aﬁﬁi_ﬁﬁiﬂi el g

1@:5@9259%(77 +F:

98.34%)&99.15%(_2 +F:
100% ) DRI REAEEZERAEF
(BREMBAR) RAAEP-

AEENEYE S AN B R
NHEERBEFESNEREEES
BWEREFE - ARNAKRENETP
BERERITEEEEEBELR
AR-ZF-N\E+-A=1+—HHN
P R E 5 SR B 2 AN 5 ik
THAHE28EF WN =
—NF+ZA=t—HLEHLEH
EEBBFELEG - AEAEEMR
EYRWE S R EMFRIAELNE
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(b)

174

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will
encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity
is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when they are due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Group’s reputation.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following are the remaining contractual

maturities of financial liabilities at the
reporting date.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥z 8RB R A 7
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts are gross and undiscounted,
and include estimated interest payments and

exclude the impact of netting agreements:

23

B %5 S Ak B 5

£HTH (&)
HEEGERE (&)

#E
(b)

(&)

nBESER (&)
HZEBERER  BALHR B4
il 5 B AT BB I B AT K 85 1

B2 4B .
Ff- 2=

At 31 December 2018
R=%¥-\§+ZB=+-H

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

AURFERHZALRH

More than More than More than More than

Within 3 months 6 months 9 months 1 year
3monthsor  but less than  but less than  but less than  but less than Carrying
on demand 6 months 9 months 1 year 5 years Total amount

=fiAh Z@ARm ~EAR AERRK Bil-f .
GREXE BORAER EYRAER  BOR-F  BOREE &5t IR
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
(EB ARRTE  ARBTL  ARMTR  ARMTR  ABMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR
Interest-bearing borrowings HERE (i 64,010 13,076 182,384 22,440 208,804 490,714 467,205
Trade and other payables EN25RELTE 30,024 - 19,889 2,854 - 52,767 52,767
Shareholder's loan REEH - - - - 149,792 149,792 126,21
94,034 13,076 202,273 25,294 358,506 693,273 646,199
At 31 December 2017
RZF—LF+ZA=1-H
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AORREAR RS

More than More than More than More than

Within 3 months 6 months 9 months 1 year
dmonthsor  butlessthan  butlessthan  butlessthan  but less than Carrying
on demand 6 months 9 months 1 year 5 years Total amount

@AM ZEAM AEAMN WEAR  BE-E .
SRERE BIRAER BIRAER  BOR-F  BOREF &5t HafE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTn ARETn  ARETn  ARETR
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE ) 41,784 24,521 174,571 33,861 331,777 606,514 565,224
Trade and other payables EN2ZREMTE 18,743 - 13,152 14,510 - 46,405 46,405
Shareholder's loan REEH - - - - 142,903 142,903 114,782
60,527 24,521 187,723 48,371 474,680 795,822 726,411
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c)

176

(i)

In respect of interest-bearing borrowings as at 31
December 2018, the principals and related interest
expenses due within 3 months or on demand of
RMB64,010,000 had been repaid in the first quarter
of 2019. The Group additionally borrowed interest-
bearing borrowings of RMB25,000,000 from
Wanxiang Finance, a related party of the Company, in
the first quarter of 2019.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market
prices, such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates, will affect the Group’s income
or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return.

()

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk
primarily from sales and purchases
and borrowings that are denominated
in a currency other than the respective
functional currencies of group entities.

The Group’s major businesses are
conducted by the Group’s subsidiaries
located in the PRC. As the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries’ functional currency
is RMB and their businesses are
principally conducted in RMB, the
Group considers the currency risk to be
insignificant.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED 3RIARERBIR A A

23 ERIA(£)

MBREEER (Z)
(b) REEEER (&)
(i) BT\ FE+-A=t+—RZEHEE
s =ZEARKREREAEN 2 RS
KB R B 2 A R #64,010,0007T 2
RZZ—NEFE-—FEF -RZFT—IF
F—F AEBENTAANRARBESBRY
% REIME BT B8 B A R 25,000,000

JC°
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(c)

(i)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Company and the Hong Kong
subsidiaries’ functional currency is
Hong Kong dollar and their businesses
or borrowings are principally conducted
in Hong Kong dollar or United States
Dollar. As the Hong Kong dollar is
pegged to the United States Dollar, the
Group considers the risk of movements
in exchange rates between the Hong
Kong dollar and the United States
Dollar to be insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from cash and cash
equivalents and interest-bearing
borrowings and shareholder’s loan.
The Group manages its interest rate
exposure by maintaining a prudent mix
of fixed and variable rate borrowings.

The Group is not exposed to significant
interest rate risk for cash and cash
equivalents because the interest rates
of cash at bank are not expected to
change significantly.

B 5 ¥R R Y R

23 EMIA(#)

MR ER (£)
FFk (/&)
(c) THiBZEE (&)

() E&EpE &)
RAFIREEHEB RN
BEEAEET EEBHEEE
ZEPB TR ETET e AINE
TTEETTEN AEERE
BT T FEE REFHH A,
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period,
the interest rate profile of the Group’s
interest-bearing financial instruments
was as follows:

Fixed rate borrowings: TEMEE:
Loans from related parties EREFNEE
Shareholder’s loan RRER
Variable rate borrowings: FEEE:

Bank loans BITEE

Loans from related parties ERERNEE

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed
rate borrowings

The Group does not account for any
fixed rate financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a
change in interest rates at the reporting
date would not affect profit or loss.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IEIABEIRAR A A

23

3.92% —4.48%

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ERIE(£)
IBEMER (&)
HEa (&)
(c) TimEpE (&)
(i) FIEREEE (&)
RBERR AEENFES
BMTANNEESWT:

2018 2017
—E-0\F TE—
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRHE BRA=
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
4.45% 135,205 4.45% 128,724
4.9% 126,227 4.9% 114,782
4.9% 197,000 4.9% 271,500
RIS 3.92%—4.9% 165,000
593,432 680,006

TEBANEE /Y 2 FE SR DT

AEBEYEFBERRATE
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 23 €W I E (#)

Financial risk management (Continued) MBREER (Z)

Overview (Continued) HBEHE (Z)

(c) Market risk (Continued) (c) WiBE (&)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FIEREEE (&)

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for EEBERH L EE RS
variable rate borrowings vig
At 31 December 2018, it is estimated RZE—NF+ZA=+—
that a general increase/decrease of A ﬁuﬂhﬂ—?—%‘ﬁ;tﬂ/T
100 basis points in interest rates, with FH1001E E B - iy BT A E b &
all other variables held constant, would HHEFIE BASEENRT
have decreased/increased the Group’s BimF MR AT R L1
profit after tax and consolidated equity m# AR #2,490,0007T (=
by approximately RMB2,490,000 (2017: T — 4 ARM2 567,000
RMB2,567,000). JT) e
The sensitivity analysis above EXBRESNET  BRER
indicates the instantaneous change WEBMFEHFNREBEE
in the Group’s profit after tax and WREmEHFEBRARER
consolidated equity that would arise EK‘ilFﬁ%E’J NEEHE S
assuming that the change in interest RensMEXREAERYE
rates had occurred at the end of the FETAET R  BIRNEBREE
reporting period and had been applied mA R A SRR
to re-measure those floating rate non- RS BRBE R M MR A #E
derivative instruments held by the mE BT RENEEEHE
Group which expose the Group to MERAZHFERLE - DT
cash flow interest rate risk at the end AEEHE —T—+FMEA
of the reporting period. The impact E—Be

on the Group’s profit after tax and
consolidated equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2017.
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24 COMMITMENTS 24

(a)

(b)

180

Capital commitments outstanding at
31 December 2018 not provided for in
the consolidated financial statements
were as follows:

A

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) R=FT—NE+=-A=+—H ' ¥
BNGEMBRREBEREMND
BEERRE FBEOT:

2018
—E-N\E
RMB’000
AREFR

Contracted for A4
Authorised but not contracted for B Z#EB RG] 4

At 31 December 2018, the total future
minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating lease are
payable as follows:

2017
—E—+tF
RMB’000
AR T T

2,603
18,983

21,586

(b) R=F—NE+=-A=+—H'HR
BATREEEHERMHEREK
REHESMAREENDNT:

2018
—E-N\E
RMB’000
AREFR

Within 1 year —FR
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFR

484
225

709

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IEIABEIRAR A A

2017
—E—+tF
RMB’000
ARET T

1,322
765

2,087
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25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2018,
transactions with the following parties are
considered as related party transactions. The
following is a summary of the principal related
party transactions carried out by the Group with
the below related parties for the year.

Name of party

BES &

B 5 ¥R R Y R

25 BEIXRS

BE-_ZTZ—-)\E+-_A=1+—HItFE-
BTRIANTZRGBREBBEARS AT
ABASEEETHEESFRNFANETER
BERGHME-

Relationship

Al 1%

Amber International

BRI B R

China Wanxiang
B & A

Puxing Energy
TEBH

Wanxiang Finance

BR %

Immediate holding company of the Company

RRFHERZERA A

Ultimate controlling company of the Company
ZNY/NEIN: 08 S8 2L /N

Intermediate parent company of the Company
PiN/NETR: SRk e RS S/NC]

A company controlled by Wanxiang Group
Corporation, of which the chairman of
Wanxiang Group Corporation is the ultimate
controlling party of the Company

HEREERRZEHNAR EFERAEERT
NESRARNAAMNELIERS
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25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 25 BAE
(Continued)
(a) Significant related party transactions (a)

and balances with related parties

In addition to cash deposits in Wanxiang
Finance as disclosed in note 16(a),
shareholder’s loan from Amber International
as disclosed in note 17 and certain bank
loans guaranteed by China Wanxiang as
disclosed in note 18, other significant
transactions between the Group and the
above related parties during the year ended
31 December 2018 are as follows:

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BFR5 (%)

HEERETHNEXBAESRXS
R a56R

B BBt sE16(a) B FE A9 10 B 1A B 7
MRS EFER RMF17HENRE
FRHBEBEOBRRERENRK T8
FEHBRPBEEMERDSE TR
BRI REBEE-_Z-N\FE+=-A
=t+—HUEFE AEFHE G
EHFNEAZRSIT:

2018 2017

=t P T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR BN

Loans from REULTHAESHER

Wanxiang Finance &\ i 70,000
Puxing Energy T2 B 10,000
Loans repaid to BEERFLUTHES

Wanxiang Finance & M5 40,000
Puxing Energy TE R 20,000
Interest income FIBWA

Wanxiang Finance & A B 7% 365
Interest expenses FEMX

Wanxiang Finance &\ it 1,120
Puxing Energy LTEFREE 10,638
Amber International ¥ 30 B R 2,203
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25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

B %5 S Ak B 5

25 BELRS (#)

(Continued)

(a) Significant related party transactions (a) HRAEHETHEXRAEIRS
and balances with related parties R&Eeg (&)
(Continued)

The balances arising from the significant
transactions between the Group and the

R-ZZE—-NE+_A=+—H K
SEHEFRBEIFNEARSHE

above related parties as at 31 December RGBT

2018 are as follows:

2018 2017
ZE-)\F Belclrds
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET PN S

Amber International
— Shareholder’s loan
— Dividend payable

— Interest payable

Wanxiang Finance

— Current interest-bearing
borrowings

— Interest payable

— Demand deposits

Puxing Energy

— Current interest-bearing
borrowings

— Non-current interest-bearing
borrowings

— Interest payable

R E R
—BREREXK (126,227) (114,782)
—ERRE (11,326) (11,326)
—FERTFRLE - (15)
BB
—BHEt BB E

(35,000) (50,000)
—ERFE (44) (46)
—/E BT 64,175 46,863
EETEE
—BNHiFT BB E

(145,205) (128,724)

—JEREIE BB E

(90,000) (115,000)
—ERFE (19,889) (13,152)
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25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

184

Key management personnel
remuneration

Remuneration for key management
personnel of the Group, including amounts
paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest
paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as
follows:

25 E@E

(b)

OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 (4#)

FEEEASNE

AEEI2ERAEME (B
MIFESFT IR A R R EE MM i
INFEEMNE TREHEEN
MEBAEN)MT

Short-term employee benefits MHEEERFT
Post-employment benefits BRI R

2018 2017
—E—)\F P
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT W50
3,185 2,900
142 131
3,327 3,031

Total remuneration is included in “personnel
costs” (see note 5(b)).

Applicability of the Listing Rules
relating to connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect
of Amber International and Puxing Energy
above constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. However those
transactions are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as they are financial assistance
received by the Group from a connected
person or commonly held entity which
could be exempted of disclosure under Rule
14A.90.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥z 8RB R A 7

(c)

ME@BAATEIRA] (R
5(b)) °

FRAMEX SN LELHRAIZER
BE
FHBBRIAREREE BN
EARSGBELMBRNETTHAE
HTHFEBRERS A %ZER
SHRAEAEERBEALTHKER
REBTRESHNI KRR IR
BTE14ABETHHEERTE W
thER BT EMAAEHHAE
W B8 4R E ©
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26 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 26 A7) EH B EARR &R
FINANCIAL POSITION

2018

—E'—N\E
Note RMB’000
(e ARt

Non-current assets EREEE

Interests in subsidiaries RHE A REER 570,018

Property, plant and equipment e Y=L 76
570,094

Current assets REEE

Other receivables H b fE W IR 76

Cash and cash equivalents HeMREZEED 2,836

2,912

Current liabilities mENE

Interest-bearing borrowings FFEEE 135,205

Trade and other payables BB 5 R HMRIE 31,640
166,845

Net current liabilities REBEETHE (163,933)

Total assets less current liabilities BEER R E & 406,161

Non-current liabilities FERENEE

Shareholder’s loan f% RE R 17 126,227

NET ASSETS HEFE 279,934

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERRGEE 22(a)

Share capital [N 22(b) 40,149

Reserves k=] 239,785

TOTAL EQUITY ELS 279,934

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 —Z— N\FEH=

2017
—ET—tF
RMB’000
AREEF T

557,849
13

128,724
25,820

154,544

(139,441)

303,639

40,149

263,490

303,639
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MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥ 2k BT R

27

28

186

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the reporting date, the directors proposed a
final dividend on 29 March 2019. Further details
are disclosed in note 22(d).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2018, the directors consider the
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Mr.
Lu Weiding, an individual person.

As at 31 December 2018, the directors consider
the immediate and ultimate controlling company
of the Group to be Amber International and China
Wanxiang respectively, which are incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and the PRC respectively.
These entities do not produce financial statements
available for public use.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥z 8RB R A 7

27

28

REMRIFAESE

REBHE EERN_T—NLF=HA
“HNABEFRNKRBRE E—FFE
TR MIFE22(d) ©

HEERGERERS

a

EERA N -F-\F+-A=+—
B AR B RAERY BB R AL
HEEA-

EERAE RN E—N+TZA=+—8"
AEBMEZEMSEKRIERAR DAL
R EFEER (DRIREBRELHS
BRABFEMKYL) ZERAWERERA
NAGHANTBRE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\/IENTS\/
B TS 3R R M 2F

29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 29 BE=ZE—-N\HFE+=ZH=+—H1
NEW STANDARDS AND EJ*EJJ‘EWEIWEE;&E’MI HEE I
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT AT ERRZREBNRESE

YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial HEZSVBHmREATNEEE HE gL
statements, the IASB has issued a number of AlZEgEBmEBE_E— \F+=A
amendments, new standards and interpretations —t+—HIEFEHRARERBREZEH
which are not yet effective for the year ended KRB W ARKA 2 ZIIEE] - FrE] £
31 December 2018 and which have not been N et EAKEEEERE TS
adopted in these financial statements. These 18

include the following which may be relevant to the

Group:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BULTHHSZE

RGBT HIE AN

IFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
BB R s LR 165% - HE —T-hF—-HA—H
IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019
BRI mEMRBENSE —F23%  AEHWEEZ THEM —T-hF—HA—H
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle 1 January 2019
—hFEZE_T -+ FREBIR B R E LR FEUCE —T-hF—-HA—H
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\—«'”/IQOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% 3% B 5 E

29 BE-ZE—NFE+ZHA=+—H1L

29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified
some aspects of the IFRS 16 which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected
impacts are discussed below. While the
assessment has been substantially completed
for IFRS 16, the actual impact upon the initial
adoption of this standard may differ as the
assessment completed to date is based on the
information currently available to the Group,
and further impacts may be identified before the
standard is initially applied in the Group’s interim
financial report for the six months ending 30 June
2019. The Group may also change its accounting
policy elections, including the transition options,
until the standard is initially applied in that financial
report.
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FECEMEERERNERT 5
AEAIRZENARESE (#)

AREBIEFEZFER  Fa] LA Rk
RERERURBEHEROTE - E)t
AEBEHER  BRMBHREERE16
St — LT E Al RE R BAR S M IS R IEK
BEXpE BHpEZE—FHBIRN
T BERBERM G REERE165RETT
ZRHEBRE D BT - EIRERMRZ LR
LERTERNGHMTRE HRE5E %
BRSO AR AR E R B A Al 5 & #
#EIT MRNZEREREARNAEERE
“E-NAFARAZTHEREAZTH
MERER AIRESHRE—FFE- X
SEMTREEENESITREERE B
BEEE BEZENEREANZIE
BEAN-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(k), currently the Group
classifies leases into finance leases and operating
leases and accounts for the lease arrangements
differently, depending on the classification of the
lease. The Group enters into some leases as the
lessee.

IFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly
on the way that lessors account for their rights
and obligations under a lease. However, once
IFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients,
lessees will account for all leases in a similar
way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at
the commencement date of the lease the lessee
will recognise and measure a lease liability at
the present value of the minimum future lease
payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this
asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance
of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the
right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy
of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee
can elect not to apply this accounting model to
short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12
months or less) and to leases of low-value assets,
in which case the rental expenses would continue
to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

o

B 5 ¥R R Y R

29 BEZE-N\HFE+ZB=+—H1
FECHEMBEREMNVIEST F
FTERIRZRENTRETE (£)

EIPREt R RSB 165% HE

I 2T ARBIREKEE
DERBEHERKEHE YREHEE
WD BEHEERHET IR - K&
B AEBEART LA HL -

EHERMEREEE16HFHTEX
BREHBAASKERHEOETOEF
REHARNTN AT — BRAEIR
B mEREAE165  REABTERD
MEMENMKEERE B XA1THRE
TERRR  AHARRERARERE
SERREDEFRUN S EMAEOA
B BIREKIRALE B A A AR IR B2
REHENTOBEERLAELHESR
B REGEREEN [ERE]EE-R
NPT ERZEERAGER  AEAGHER
HERBRESESRAEENNERAIR
EREEENE MIFRBERBEENE
HARRRELERRREBEQEEHERE
EMHEERAX R —HATEE A
EBEAEZIK LS EAEBRE
HIE (A R12MEASAT ) MEE
BEENHE RZFEBEAT HEMX
BN NI R AR ERER
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\—«'”/IQOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% 3% B 5 E

29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 29 BEZE-N\F+ZA=1t—HL

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s
accounting as a lessee of leases for properties,
plant and equipment which are currently classified
as operating leases. The application of the new
accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to
impact on the timing of the expense recognition in
the statement of profit or loss over the period of
the lease.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. As allowed by IFRS
16, the Group plans to use the practical expedient
to grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. The
Group will therefore apply the new definition of a
lease in IFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered
into on or after the date of initial application. In
addition, the Group plans to elect the practical
expedient for not applying the new accounting
model to short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets.

190 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED ¥z 8RB R A 7

FECEMEERERNERT 5
AEAIRZENARESE (#)

EIPREA R iR ERIE165%  HE (#)
B ERSENFIRBEIEFER
SEFERBOABEARDE BE KK
wBRARDBE/KEHE NS RES
#oBHIEAH e EABEREERE
EHAMEM R ERORENEER
HERR I XX OB

BRI RMEEREIHEN T —NF
— AR ZRHABNFERRER-
HR BRI S S E R FA6RAA AR A
SEFBRBUBNRENERRALR
B(REERREEE) 2 BT HEE
R o B - AN E i E B R A F53RE
ZHF16 B REMA B HE B ERA]
VHWAKHEREENIER WHN K&
BEEEZUVENREN L THEHE
EARREHEEREEEEEEE-
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29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018 (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

The Group elected to use the modified
retrospective approach for the adoption of IFRS
16 and will recognise the cumulative effect of
initial application as an adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at 1 January 2019 and will
not restate the comparative information. As
disclosed in note 24(b), at 31 December 2018
the Group’s future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases amount
to RMB709,000 for properties. Upon the initial
adoption of IFRS 16, the opening balances of
lease liabilities and the corresponding right-of-
use assets will be adjusted to RMB424,694 and
RMB424,694 respectively, after taking account the
effects of discounting, as at 1 January 2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets, the Group expects that the
transition adjustments to be made upon the initial
adoption of IFRS 16 will not be material. However,
the expected changes in accounting policies as
described above could have a material impact
on the Group’s financial statement from 2019
onwards.

B 5 ¥R R Y R

29 BE-E—-NFE+ZHA=+—H1
FECEMEEREMNVIEE
RTERBNEREBNREEE (&)

A

EREAFS R ERISE1655  HHE (&)
AEERERAEEITNEREAERR
BREf SRR FE165E  WENR B~
F—A—HABENERNZFTERR
BRESFVEGAE TS EIHEE
Ko AN sE240) T T - R=—T— \F
+ZA=+—H ®WEms  AEER
AR EREBE THEHARIEKAE
K ERE A R #709,0007T © B R R A B B
i mE £ FE165k% HEAB LA
EFEREEENTYERBEES RELE
VHERR _T—hF—A—BH3H
B NRH424,6047T o AR #424,694
5% o

BRERHERBRERBEEEIN A%
B TR AT 70 B R BR A B R B R e S R RIS
1658 & TELAEEABL TEK-
AW Bt S E BRI E F) A L E A
SEE T NFENYBBRRELE
T
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MBERE

RESULTS

Revenue

Profit/(loss) before taxation

BRaEN/ (B])

Income tax PG

Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/ (BE)

Attributable to: HUFALREL

Equity shareholders of RLAERRR
the Company »

Non-controlling interests ey

Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/ (E8)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ASSETS BE
Current assets RYPEE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Total assets BEE
LIABILITIES BfE
Current liabilities mEaE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Total liabilities BEE
Net assets BEFE
EQUITY #m
Equity shareholders of AREERRR
the Company .
Non-controlling interests R ER
Total equity BRER
192 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED

2018
—B-\f§
RMB’000
AREFR

281,625

70,316
(24,736)

45,580

45,580

45,580

2018
—B-)\f§
RMB’000
AREFTR

122,484
1,111,672

1,234,156
313,658
377,477
691,135

543,021

542,487
534

543,021

BRIAGEIRBR QA

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t+-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014
T+ —Z-RFE —T-hHFE —T-NF
RMB'OO_O RMB'OO_O RMB’OO_O RMB’OO_O
AREFT ARETT AR%®TRT ARETR
348,364 279,173 389,631 894,339
59,999 70,761 61,820 (147,636)
(25,831) (29,310) (18,441) (1,389)
34,168 41,451 43,379 (149,025)
34,222 41,708 43,691 (148,897)
(54) (252) (312) (128)
34,168 41,451 43,379 (149,025)
EENREE
As at 31 December
R+=ZB=+-H
2017 2016 2015 2014
“BE—+F ZE-RE ZE-1f _—T-WF
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFTT ARETT AR%®TRT ARETR
125,763 196,473 219,762 366,576
1,158,106 1,217,150 1,243,463 1,230,725
1,283,869 1,413,623 1,463,225 1,597,301
299,629 597,494 323,657 558,705
462,367 331,628 669,805 632,409
761,996 929,122 993,462 1,191,114
521,873 484,501 469,763 406,187
521,339 483,913 468,923 405,035
534 588 840 1,152
521,873 484,501 469,763 406,187
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AMBER ENERGY LIMITED

Room 706, 7/F. Albion Plaza, 2-6 Granville Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BB NBER DR INE R B 2-655%
EFEMEAETET06E
http://www.amberenergy.com.hk
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